## BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI

Application of Kansas City Power & Light Company	)	
For Authority to Issue Debt Securities	)	Case No. EF-2008-

# APPLICATION OF KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY FOR AUTHORITY TO INCREASE DEBT SECURITY AUTHORIZATION

COMES NOW Kansas City Power & Light Company ("Applicant" or "Company"), pursuant to Sections 393.180 and 393.200, RSMo. 2000 and 4 CSR 240-3.120 and 4 CSR 240-2.060, and respectfully requests authority from the Missouri Public Service Commission ("Commission") to increase from \$635 million to \$1.4 billion the authorization to issue debt securities granted by the Commission in Case No. EF-2005-0498. Applicant further respectfully requests that the Commission issue an order granting the authorizations sought herein by March 1, 2008.\* In support thereof, Applicant states as follows:

- 1. Applicant is a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri, with its principal office and place of business located at 1201 Walnut, Kansas City, Missouri 64106. Applicant is an electrical corporation and public utility as defined in Section 386.020 RSMo. 2000. Applicant's Certificate of Good Standing was provided in Case No. EF-2004-0265 and is incorporated herein by reference.
- 2. Applicant holds Certificates of Convenience and Necessity from the Commission to transact business as an electric public utility in certain areas of the State of Missouri and is principally engaged in the generation, transmission, distribution and sale of electric power and

<sup>\* &</sup>quot;\*\* Designates Highly Confidential Information. Certain Exhibits Attached To This Application Designated "HC" Also Contain Highly Confidential Information. All Such Information Should Be Treated Confidentially Pursuant To 4 CSR 240-2.135.

energy. In addition, Applicant has heretofore filed with this Commission a certified copy of the Articles of Consolidation under which it was organized and of all amendments thereto.

- 3. Applicant is a Signatory Party to a Stipulation and Agreement (hereafter, "the Stipulation") submitted to the Commission in Case No. EO-2005-0329, "In the Matter of a Proposed Experimental Regulatory Plan of Kansas City Power & Light Company." Appendix B to such Stipulation outlined Applicant's proposed Financing Plan for the 2005-2009 period, including the projected issuance of debt securities for new financing and refinancing requirements. On November 3, 2005 in Case No. EF-2005-0498, the Commission authorized Applicant to issue up to \$635 million principal amount of debt securities through December 31, 2009 (the "2005 Financing Authority").
  - 4. Communications in regard to this matter should be addressed to:

Lois Liechti

Kansas City Power & Light Company

1201 Walnut Street, 13<sup>th</sup> Floor

Kansas City, Missouri 64106

Telephone: (816) 556-2612

Fax: (816) 556-2110

E-mail: Lois.Liechti@kcpl.com

Curtis D. Blanc

Kansas City Power & Light Company

1201 Walnut Street, 20th Floor

Kansas City, Missouri 64106

Telephone: (816) 556-2483

Fax:

(816) 556-2787

E-mail:

Curtis.Blanc@kcpl.com

5. Applicant has no pending action or final unsatisfied judgments or decisions against it from any state or federal agency or court which involve customer service or rates which have occurred within three (3) years of the date of this Application, except as identified in

Appendix 1 attached hereto and incorporated herein. No annual report or assessment fees are overdue.

- 6. Applicant is a joint applicant in a merger proceeding before the Commission in Case No. EM-2007-0374. Such case has no impact on the additional authority to issue long-term debt sought by the Applicant herein.
- 7. The status of Applicant's Capital Stock outstanding at September 30, 2007, under its Articles of Consolidation, as amended, was as follows:

			Number of	
Class	Number of Par		Shares Without	Number of
of	Value Shares		Par Value	Shares
<b>Stock</b>	<b>Authorized</b>	Par Value	<b>Authorized</b>	Outstanding
Common Stock	<del></del>		<u>1,000</u>	<u>1</u>
			<u>1,000</u>	<u>1</u>

- 8. As of September 30, 2007, Applicant's long-term indebtedness (excluding current maturities and including unamortized discounts and FAS 133 impacts) was \$1,003.4 million, represented by (i) \$196.5 million of Pollution Control Bonds, Series 2005 and Series 2007A and 2007B; (ii) \$648.1 million of Senior Unsecured Notes; and (iii) \$158.8 million of General Mortgage Bonds pledged in support of Pollution Control Bonds.
- 9. Applicant had \$405.1 million of short-term indebtedness (including \$146.5 million of current maturities) outstanding on September 30, 2007.
- 10. None of the outstanding stock or stock certificates or bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness of Applicant have been issued or used in capitalizing its rights to be a corporation, or any franchise or permit, or the right to own, operate or enjoy any such franchise or permit, or any contract for consolidation or lease.

11. The 2005 Financing Authority addressed KCPL's anticipated financing and refinancing requirements for the 2005-2009 period, as outlined in Appendix B of the Stipulation. Given the projected changes in the cost of the capital investments contemplated in the Stipulation and Applicant's desire for conditional flexibility to issue long-term debt in 2009 to finance 2010 requirements, Applicant herein seeks authority to increase the principal amount of debt securities authorized in the 2005 Financing Authority from \$635 million to \$1.4 billion through December 31, 2009. As reflected in Applicant's 2008-2010 projected financing plan contained in Exhibit 4 attached to this application, Applicant projects a need to issue debt securities in an amount of up to approximately \*\* over the period. Of that amount, \$135 million will be comprised of outstanding, but as of yet unused, authorization under the 2005 Financing Authority and \*\* will be comprised of the additional authorization sought herein. Applicant is providing a schedule of projected capital expenditures over the 2008 – 2010 period as Exhibit 5 attached to this application.

Applicant does not seek herein to extend the December 31, 2009 timeframe contemplated in the 2005 Financing Authority; however, the additional authorization sought by Applicant contemplates the ability to issue up to \*\*

\*\* of debt securities in the fourth quarter of 2009 related to Applicant's 2010 requirements. Applicant considers this flexibility essential during periods of high capital spending given the limitations on Applicant's ability to access the debt capital markets in a given calendar year imposed by normal-course blackout periods surrounding the filing of Applicant's 10-K and 10-Q reports. Without the ability to consider "pre-funding" future requirements with long-term debt, such limitations, coupled with a high "run rate" of capital spending, may require the Applicant to rely unduly heavily on short-term borrowings for a period of time.

Applicant expects that it would consider issuing up to \*\* \*\* of long-term debt related to 2010 requirements between October 1 and December 31, 2009 only if Applicant's total short-term debt outstanding at September 30, 2009 was greater than \*\*

Applicant believes that a level of short-term borrowings below \*\* \*\* as of September 30, 2009 would provide sufficient flexibility to fund cash requirements related to 2010 capital needs with short-term debt until Applicant was able to complete a long-term debt offering in 2010.

- 12. Paragraph 3.B.1.(i) of the Stipulation indicated that the Total Debt to Total Capitalization ratio, one of three key credit ratios identified in Appendix E to the Stipulation, should be "addressed in the KCPL financing application....". The projected Total Debt to Total Capitalization ratio as calculated by the credit rating agency Standard & Poor's, as well as the projected equity ratio for regulatory capital structure purposes that result from Applicant's projected financing plan for 2008-2010 are shown in Exhibit 4.
- 13. Applicant will issue such debt, up to the authorized amount, through one or a number of offerings to be determined from time to time by the Applicant. By providing flexibility and ability to take advantage of rapidly changing market conditions, such an approach allows the Applicant to obtain the most advantageous terms and conditions at the time of issuance, thereby enabling the Applicant to maintain its low-cost debt structure.
- 14. The debt securities will have maturities of one year to 40 years and will be issued by the Applicant or through agents or underwriters for the Applicant in multiple offerings of differing amounts with different interest rates (including variable interest rates) and other negotiated terms and conditions. Interest rates on the debt securities, represented by either (i) the

coupon on fixed rate debt securities or (ii) the initial rate on any variable or remarketed debt securities, will not exceed nine percent (9%).

- 15. The debt securities may be senior or subordinated and may be issued as unsecured or secured under the Applicant's existing general mortgage debt indentures, depending on cost differentials and market conditions at the time of issuance. The debt securities may take the form of "fall-away" mortgage debt in which it is initially secured debt but converts to unsecured debt based on certain conditions.
- 16. Applicant also requests authority to enter into interest rate hedging instruments in conjunction with the additional debt securities to be issued under this authorization. Applicant anticipates potentially using such hedging instruments for two purposes: (1) To "lock in" the key underlying rate of an upcoming debt issuance in advance of the issuance itself; and (2) At the time of debt issuance, to change the interest rate mode on the issued security from floating to fixed or vice versa, depending on Applicant's desired mix of fixed and floating rate debt. Depending on investor appetite at the time of issuance, it is sometimes more economical to issue floating rate securities and swap them to a fixed rate or cap them at some interest rate, rather than issue fixed rate securities. Alternatively, it may be more economical to issue fixed rate securities and swap them to floating rather than issue floating rate securities. By having the flexibility to use hedging instruments to alter the interest rate from that on the debt securities issued to the market, Applicant will be able to optimize the cost of the debt. Because the Applicant's decision to use interest rate hedging instruments is dependent on market conditions at the time the debt securities are issued, both the use and cost of hedging instruments is difficult to forecast. Interest rate swaps require no upfront costs, while any upfront costs associated with the use of interest rate caps and/or and collars, would be expected to be partially or fully offset by the economic

savings resulting from their use. Although Applicant has authority from the Commission provided in Case No. EF-2005-0388 to enter into interest rate hedging instruments, the purpose of that authority is to manage the portfolio of variable rate debt, particularly pollution control bonds that the Applicant currently has outstanding. The authority requested in this application would be limited to using interest rate hedging instruments solely in conjunction with the debt securities approved herein. Applicant has taken this approach in its past three Financing Applications and has received Commission authority on that basis.

- 17. As with the 2005 Financing Authority, Applicant will use the proceeds of the securities to refinance outstanding short-term debt and to continue implementing the Comprehensive Energy Plan described in the Stipulation.
- 18. On December 18, 2007, Applicant filed a registration statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") for up to \$900 million in aggregate principal amount of notes and mortgage bonds, which is referenced in Exhibit 1 to this Application.
- 19. Applicant is entitled, with the authorization of the Commission, to issue up to \$1.4 billion of debt securities and related interest rate hedging instruments and to enter into the agreements necessary for the transactions. Applicant further submits that such issuance and execution are in the public interest.
- 20. Applicant believes that this verified Application and exhibits will provide the Commission with sufficient facts and information to make a proper disposition of this Application without a hearing. Applicant will present an overview of this Application to Staff, the Office of Public Counsel and any interested parties to Case No. EO-2005-0329 at a meeting scheduled on January 23, 2008.

- 21. Applicant will file with the Commission within ten (10) days of the issuance of any debt securities authorized in this case a report including the amount of debt securities issued, date of issuance, interest rate (initial rate if variable), maturity date, and redemption schedules or special terms, if any. Applicant will also file a statement of the portion of the issuance of the debt securities, if any, which is subject to the fee schedule in Section 386.300, RSMo 2000 and pursuant to 4 CSR 3.120(1)(F).
- 22. The following exhibits were filed with the Company's Application or are herewith filed and made a part hereof:
  - Exhibit 1 Registration Statement filed by Applicant with the SEC on December 18, 2007, including forms of indentures, pursuant to 4 CSR 3.120(1)(C).
  - Exhibit 2 Certified copy of resolutions of the Applicant's Board of Directors authorizing, among other things, the Applicant to submit a registration statement to the SEC concerning the issuance of the debt securities. Pursuant to 4 CSR 3.120(1)(D), applicant will submit as late-filed exhibits Board of Director resolutions authorizing specific debt issuances.
  - Exhibit 3 Revised *pro forma* financial statements of the Applicant as of September 30, 2007, giving effect to the transactions and accounting adjustments herein described pursuant to 4 CSR 3.120(1)(E).
  - Exhibit 4 2008-2010 projected financing plan, with credit metrics.

- Exhibit 5 2008-10 projected capital expenditure schedule.
- 21. The information presented in Exhibits 4 and 5 include financial information which has not yet been publicly disclosed by the Applicant. Applicant therefore requests that Exhibits 4 and 5 be treated as "Highly Confidential" pursuant to 4 CSR 240-2.135.
- 22. Applicant requests that the Commission issue an order granting the authorizations sought herein by March 1, 2008. Given the impediments imposed by the global capital markets in the latter half of 2007 on borrowers' ability to raise capital on attractive terms, Applicant seeks to retain maximum flexibility for satisfying its liquidity needs on a timely basis.

WHEREFORE, Applicant requests the Commission enter an appropriate Order authorizing Applicant:

- to issue during the period ending December 31, 2009, up to \$1.4 billion principal amount of debt securities, which may take the form of secured or unsecured senior or subordinated debt, "fall away" mortgage debt, or subordinated debt issued to special purpose financing entities, and with fixed or variable interest rates not to exceed nine percent (9%) on (i) fixed-rate notes or (ii) the initial rate on any variable rate or remarketed notes;
- (b) to enter into interest rate hedging instruments with one or more counterparties in conjunction with the debt securities issued under this authorization; and
- (c) to execute all documents necessary for the issuance and take all other actions necessary for the issuance and maintenance of the debt securities authorized in this proceeding.

# Respectfully submitted,

By:

Michael Welmi

Michael W. Cline,

Treasurer

Kansas City Power & Light Company

Curtis D. Blanc - MO Bar No. 58052

1201 Walnut Street, 20th Floor

Kansas City, Missouri 64141-9679

Telephone: (816) 556-2483 Facsimile: (816) 556-2787

E-mail: Curtis.Blanc@KCPL.com

ATTORNEY FOR

KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY

Dated: December 27, 2007

## **VERIFICATION**

STATE OF MISSOURI	)	
	)	SS
COUNTY OF JACKSON	)	

Michael W. Cline, being first duly sworn, on his oath and in his capacity as Treasurer of Kansas City Power & Light Company, states that he is authorized to execute this Application on behalf of Kansas City Power & Light Company, and has knowledge of the matters stated in this Application, and that said matters are true and correct to the best of his knowledge, information and belief.

Michael W. Cline

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 27<sup>th</sup> day of Deccember 2007.

Mi Cob A. LOELLY Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

Fub. 4, 2011

"NOTARY SEAL"
Nicole A. Wehry, Notary Public
Jackson County, State of Missouri
My Commission Expires 2/4/2011
Commission Number 07391200

#### **CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE**

I hereby certify that a copy of the foregoing application was served via first class mail, postage prepaid, on this 27<sup>th</sup> day of December 2007, upon:

Kevin Thompson Missouri Public Service Commission P.O. Box 360 200 Madison St., Suite 800 Jefferson City, MO 65102

Lewis Mills Office of the Public Counsel P.O. Box 2230 200 Madison St., Suite 650 Jefferson City, MO 65102

A courtesy copy was also sent to all counsel of record in Case No. EO-2005-0329.

Curtis D. Blanc

## Appendix 1

# Pending Actions or Final Unsatisfied Judgments or Decisions

The following is a listing of Applicant's pending actions or final unsatisfied judgments or decisions against it from any state or federal agency or court which involve customer service or rates, which action, judgment or decision has occurred within three (3) years of the date of this application:

- 1. Zimmerman, Adam v. Kansas City Power & Light Co., Case No. EC-2008-0195.
- 2. Morales, Marisa v. Kansas City Power & Light Co., Case No. EC-2008-0121.

# **EXHIBIT 1**

Registration Statement filed by App	plicant with the Securities	and Exchange Com	mission
-------------------------------------	-----------------------------	------------------	---------

Registration No. 333-\_\_\_\_

# UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

#### Form S-3

#### **REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933**

#### KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

#### Missouri

44-0308720

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

1201 Walnut Street Kansas City, Missouri 64106-2124 (816) 556-2200

(Address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of registrant's principal executive offices)

Mark G. English
General Counsel and Assistant Corporate Secretary
Great Plains Energy Incorporated
1201 Walnut Street
Kansas City, Missouri 64106-2124
(816) 556-2200

(Name, address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of agent for service)

With copies to:

Richard W. Astle Sidley Austin LLP One South Dearborn Street Chicago, Illinois 60603 Daniel G. Kelly, Jr.
Julia K. Cowles
Davis Polk & Wardwell
1600 El Camino Real
Menlo Park, California 94025

Approximate date of commencement of proposed sale to the public: From time to time after the effective date of this Registration Statement.

If the only securities being registered on this Form are being offered pursuant to dividend or interest reinvestment plans, please check the following box. 

□

If any of the securities being registered on this Form are to be offered on a delayed or continuous basis pursuant to Rule 415 under the Securities Act of 1933, other than securities offered only in connection with dividend or interest reinvestment plans, check the following box.

If this Form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, please check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering.   □
If this Form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(c) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering.
If this Form is a registration statement pursuant to General Instruction I.D. or a post-effective amendment thereto that shall become effective upon filing with the Commission pursuant to Rule 462(e) under the Securities Act, check the following box. □

If this Form is a post-effective amendment to a registration statement filed pursuant to General Instruction I.D. filed to register additional securities or additional classes of securities pursuant to Rule 413(b) under the Securities Act, check the following box.  $\Box$ 

#### **CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE**

Title of each class of convities to be registered	Amount to be registered	Proposed maximum	Amount of registration
Title of each class of securities to be registered	Amount to be registered	aggregate offering price	tee
Debt Securities	\$900,000,000 (1)	\$900,000,000 (1)	\$27,630 (2)

- (1) Estimated solely for the purpose of calculating the registration fee pursuant to Rule 457 under the Securities Act of 1933. The aggregate offering price of the securities registered hereby will not exceed \$900,000,000 in United States dollars or the equivalent thereof in foreign currency units.
- (2) In reliance on and in accordance with Rule 457(p) under the Securities Act of 1933, Kansas City Power & Light Company has offset \$405 in filing fees previously paid in connection with unsold debt securities registered under a prior Form S-3 registration statement (Registration No. 333-108215), which was filed by Kansas City Power & Light Company, as registrant, on August 26, 2003

The Registrant hereby amends this Registration Statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay its effective date until the Registrant shall file a further amendment which specifically states that this Registration Statement shall thereafter become effective in accordance with Section 8(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 or until the Registration Statement shall become effective on such date as the Securities and Exchange Commission, acting pursuant to said Section 8(a), may determine.

#### KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY

# Notes General Mortgage Bonds

Kansas City Power & Light Company, or the Company, may offer and sell, from time to time, up to \$900,000,000 aggregate offering price of notes and general mortgage bonds in one or more offerings. We may offer the securities simultaneously or at different times, in one or more separate series, in amounts, at prices and on terms to be determined at or prior to the time or times of sale.

This prospectus provides you with a general description of these securities. We will provide specific information about the offering and the terms of these securities in one or more supplements to this prospectus. The supplements may also add, update or change information contained in this prospectus. This prospectus may not be used to offer and sell our securities unless accompanied by a prospectus supplement. You should read this prospectus and the related supplements before you invest in these securities.

Our principal executive offices are located at 1201 Walnut Street, Kansas City, Missouri 64106-2124 and our telephone number is (816) 556-2200.

Investing in these securities involves risks. You should carefully consider the information referred to under the heading "Risk Factors" beginning on page 1 of this prospectus.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or determined if this prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

We may offer and sell these securities through one or more underwriters or agents. We will set forth in the related prospectus supplement the name of the underwriters or agents, the discount or commission received by them from us as compensation, our other expenses for the offering and sale of these securities, and the net proceeds we receive from the sale. See "Plan of Distribution."

The date of this prospectus is December \_\_\_, 2007.

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

	Page No
ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS	
CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS REGARDING CERTAIN FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION	i
THE COMPANY	
RISK FACTORS	
USE OF PROCEEDS	
DESCRIPTION OF NOTES	2
DESCRIPTION OF GENERAL MORTGAGE BONDS	11
BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM	15
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION	18
LEGAL MATTERS	18
EXPERTS	18
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	19

#### **ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS**

This prospectus is part of a registration statement we have filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, using a "shelf" registration process. By using this process, we may, from time to time, sell any combination of the securities described in this prospectus in one or more offerings.

This prospectus provides you with a general description of the securities we may offer. Each time we sell securities, we will provide you with a supplement to this prospectus that will describe the specific terms of that offering. The prospectus supplement may also add, update or change the information contained in this prospectus. If there is any inconsistency between the information in this prospectus and the prospectus supplement, you should rely on the information in the prospectus supplement. The registration statement we filed with the SEC includes exhibits that provide more detail on descriptions of the matters discussed in this prospectus. Before you invest in our securities, you should carefully read the registration statement (including the exhibits) of which this prospectus forms a part, this prospectus, the applicable prospectus supplement and the documents incorporated by reference into this prospectus. The incorporated documents are described under "Where You Can Find More Information."

You should rely only on the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus or in any free writing prospectus. We have not, and the underwriters have not, authorized anyone to provide you with different information and neither we nor the underwriters of any offering of securities will authorize anyone else to provide you with different information. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. We are not, and the underwriters are not, making an offer to sell these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted. You should assume that the information appearing in this prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference is accurate only as of their respective dates. Our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may have changed materially since those dates.

As described in more detail below under "Where You Can Find More Information", we and Great Plains Energy Incorporated, our parent company, separately file combined annual, quarterly and current reports. However, only the information related to KCP&L and its consolidated subsidiaries is incorporated by reference in this prospectus. You should not rely on any information relating solely to Great Plains Energy Incorporated or its subsidiaries (other than the information provided separately by KCP&L or the subsidiaries of KCP&L) in determining whether to invest in any securities offered hereby.

Unless the context otherwise requires or as otherwise indicated, when we refer to "Kansas City Power & Light," "KCP&L," the "Company," "we," "us" or "our" in this prospectus or when we otherwise refer to ourselves in this prospectus, we mean Kansas City Power & Light Company and not any of its subsidiaries.

# CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS REGARDING CERTAIN FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

This prospectus and the documents incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference as described under the heading "Where You Can Find More Information" contain forward-looking statements that are not based on historical facts. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by use of the words "may," "should," "expect," "plan," "anticipate," "estimate," "predict," "potential," or "continue." Forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, statements regarding projected delivery volumes and margins, the outcome of regulatory proceedings, cost estimates for our Comprehensive Energy Plan and other matters affecting future operations. These forward-looking statements are based on assumptions, expectations, and assessments made by our management in light of their experience and their perception of historical trends, current conditions, expected future developments and other factors they believe to be appropriate. Any forward-looking statements are not guarantees of our future performance and are subject to risks and uncertainties, including those described or referred to under the heading "Risk Factors" in this prospectus, in any prospectus supplement, and in our other SEC filings. These risks and uncertainties could cause actual results, developments and business decisions to differ materially from those contemplated or implied by forward-looking statements. Consequently, you should recognize these statements for what they are and we caution you not to rely upon them as facts. We claim the protection of the safe harbor for forward-looking statements contained in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 for all forward-looking statements. We disclaim any duty to update the forward-looking statements, which apply only as of the date of this prospectus. Some of the factors that may cause actual results, developments and business decisions to differ materially from those contemplated by these forward-looking statements include the following:

- future economic conditions in the regional, national and international markets, including but not limited to regional and national wholesale electricity markets
- market perception of the energy industry and the Company
- changes in business strategy, operations or development plans
- effects of current or proposed state and federal legislative and regulatory actions or developments, including, but not limited to, deregulation, re-regulation and restructuring of the electric utility industry
- · decisions of regulators regarding rates the Company can charge for electricity
- adverse changes in applicable laws, regulations, rules, principles or practices governing tax, accounting and environmental matters including, but not limited to, air and water quality
- financial market conditions and performance including, but not limited to, changes in interest
  rates and in availability and cost of capital and the effects on pension plan assets and costs
- · credit ratings
- inflation rates
- effectiveness of risk management policies and procedures and the ability of counterparties to satisfy their contractual commitments
- impact of terrorist acts
- increased competition including, but not limited to, retail choice in the electric utility industry and the entry of new competitors

- ability to carry out marketing and sales plans
- · weather conditions including weather-related damage
- · cost, availability, quality and deliverability of fuel
- ability to achieve generation planning goals and the occurrence and duration of unplanned generation outages
- delays in the anticipated in-service dates and cost increases of additional generating capacity
- nuclear operations
- · workforce risks including compensation and benefits costs
- variations between the stated assumptions on which forward-looking statements are based and our actual experience
- other risks and uncertainties

This list of factors is not all-inclusive because it is not possible to predict all factors. You should also carefully consider the information referred to under the heading "Risk Factors" in this prospectus, any prospectus supplement, and in our other SEC filings.

#### KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY

Kansas City Power & Light Company is an integrated, regulated electric utility, headquartered in Kansas City, Missouri, that engages in the generation, transmission, distribution and sale of electricity. As of September 30, 2007, we serve approximately 507,000 customers located in all or portions of 24 counties in western Missouri and eastern Kansas. Our customers include approximately 447,200 residences, over 57,500 commercial firms, and approximately 2,200 industrials, municipalities, and other electric utilities. Our retail revenues averaged approximately 81% of our total operating revenues over the last three years. Wholesale firm power, bulk power sales and miscellaneous electric revenues accounted for the remainder of utility revenues. We are significantly impacted by seasonality, with approximately one-third of our retail revenues recorded in the third quarter.

#### **RISK FACTORS**

Investing in our securities involves risks. Our business is influenced by many factors that are difficult to predict, involve uncertainties that may materially affect actual results and are often beyond our control. You should carefully consider the information under the heading "Risk Factors" in:

- any prospectus supplement relating to any securities we are offering;
- our annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 and our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q for the quarterly periods ended March 31, 2007, June 30, 2007 and September 30, 2007, which are incorporated by reference into this prospectus; and
- documents we file with the SEC after the date of this prospectus and which are deemed incorporated by reference into this prospectus.

#### **USE OF PROCEEDS**

Unless we inform you otherwise in a supplement to this prospectus, we anticipate using any net proceeds received by us from the issuance of any of the offered securities for general corporate purposes, including, among others:

- repayment of debt:
- repurchase, retirement or refinancing of other securities;
- funding of construction expenditures; and
- acquisitions.

Pending such uses, we may also invest the proceeds in certificates of deposit, United States government securities or certain other interest-bearing securities. If we decide to use the net proceeds from a particular offering of securities for a specific purpose, we will describe that in the related prospectus supplement.

#### **DESCRIPTION OF NOTES**

#### General

The notes will represent unsecured obligations of the Company. We will issue each series of notes under the Indenture, dated as of May 1, 2007, between the Company and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as trustee. We refer to this Indenture in this prospectus as the "Indenture" and to The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A. as the "trustee." If at any time there is more than one trustee under the Indenture, the term "trustee" as used in this section with respect to the notes of any series means the trustee with respect to the notes of that series.

We have summarized selected provisions of the Indenture below. However, the following statements are summaries only, do not purport to be complete and are subject to, and qualified in their entirety by, all of the provisions of the Indenture, which is incorporated by reference herein. Certain of the terms used below are used herein with the meanings ascribed to such terms by the Indenture. You should carefully read the summary below and the provisions of the Indenture that may be important to you before investing. The Indenture, and not this description, defines the rights of the holders of the notes. Copies of the Indenture will be available at the offices of the trustee at 2 North LaSalle Street, Suite 1020, Chicago, Illinois 60602.

The following sets forth certain general terms and provisions of the notes. The particular terms of the series of notes offered by any prospectus supplement will be described in that prospectus supplement. The Indenture provides that the notes may be issued in one or more series, may be issued at various times, may have differing maturity dates, may bear interest at differing rates and may have other differing terms and conditions, as described below. We need not issue all notes of one series at the same time and, unless otherwise provided, we may reopen a series, without the consent of the holder of the notes of that series for issuances of additional notes. One or more series of the notes may be issued with the same or various maturities at par, above par or at a discount. Notes bearing no interest or interest at a rate which, at the time of issuance, is below the market rate ("Original Issue Discount Securities") will be sold at a discount (which may be substantial) below their stated principal amount. Federal income tax consequences and other special considerations applicable to any such Original Issue Discount Securities will be described in the prospectus supplement relating to those securities. Unless otherwise described in the applicable prospectus supplement, the Indenture does not limit the aggregate amount of debt, including secured debt, that we or our subsidiaries may incur. There is no limitation of the amount of debt we may issue under the Indenture. The Indenture also permits us to merge or consolidate or to transfer or lease our assets, subject to certain conditions (see "Consolidation, Merger and Sale" below).

#### Ranking

Each series of notes will be our direct unsecured general obligations and will rank equally with all of our other unsecured and unsubordinated debt. As of September 30, 2007, our aggregate outstanding debt that would have ranked equally with the notes was approximately \$991.1 million.

Unless otherwise provided in a prospectus supplement, the notes will effectively rank junior to our mortgage bonds which were issued under our Mortgage Indenture. The Mortgage Indenture constitutes a first mortgage lien upon substantially all of our fixed property and franchises. At September 30, 2007, there was approximately \$158.8 million aggregate principal amount of mortgage bonds outstanding. We have agreed with the issuer of certain bond insurance policies to not issue additional mortgage bonds if, after giving effect to such additional mortgage bonds, the proportion of secured debt to total indebtedness exceeded 75%. Additionally, if the long term rating for such mortgage bonds by Standard & Poor's or Moody's Investors Service would be at or below A- or A3, respectively, such agreements would prohibit us from issuing additional mortgage bonds if, after giving effect to such additional mortgage bonds, the proportion of secured debt to total indebtedness exceeded 50%. At September 30, 2007, the proportion of secured debt to total indebtedness was approximately 11%.

#### **Provisions of a Particular Series**

The prospectus supplement applicable to each issuance of notes will specify, among other things:

- the title and any limitation on aggregate principal amount of the notes;
- the original issue date of the notes;
- the date or dates on which the principal of any of the notes is payable;
- the fixed or variable interest rate or rates, or method of calculation of such rate or rates, for the notes, and the date from which interest will accrue;
- the terms, if any, regarding the optional or mandatory redemption of any notes, including the redemption date or dates, if any, and the price or prices applicable to such redemption;
- whether the notes are to be issued in whole or in part in the form of one of more global securities and, if so, the identity of the Depositary for such global security or global securities;
- the denominations in which such notes will be issuable;
- the maximum annual interest rate, if any, of the notes;
- the period or periods within which, the price or prices at which and the terms and conditions upon which any notes may be repaid, in whole or in part, at the option of the holder thereof;
- the place or places where the principal of, and premium, if any, and interest, if any, on the notes shall be payable;
- any addition, deletion or modification to the events of default applicable to that series of notes and the covenants for the benefit of the holders of that series;
- the terms, if any, pursuant to which notes may be converted into or exchanged for shares of our capital stock or other securities;
- our obligation, if any, to redeem, purchase, or repay the notes, including, but not limited to, pursuant to any sinking fund or analogous provision or at the option of a holder thereof and the period or periods within which, the price or prices at which, and the terms and conditions upon which the notes shall be redeemed, purchased, or repaid pursuant to such obligation;
- any remarketing features of the notes;
- any collateral, security, assurance, or guarantee for the note;
- if other than the principal amount thereof, the portion of the principal amount of the notes payable upon declaration of acceleration of the maturity of the notes;
- the securities exchange(s), if any, on which the notes will be listed;
- any interest deferral or extension provisions;
- the terms of any warrants we may issue to purchase notes;

- the right, if any, for us to extend the interest payment periods of the notes, including the
  maximum duration of any extension and additional interest payable upon exercise of such
  right; and
- any other terms of the notes not inconsistent with the provisions of the Indenture.

#### Registration, Transfer and Exchange

Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, each series of notes will initially be issued in the form of one or more global securities, in registered form, without coupons, as described under "Book-Entry System." The global securities will be registered in the name of a depository, or its nominee, and deposited with, or on behalf of, the depository. Except in the circumstances described under "Book-Entry System," owners of beneficial interests in a global security will not be entitled to have notes registered in their names, will not receive or be entitled to receive physical delivery of any notes and will not be considered the registered holders thereof under the Indenture.

Notes of any series will be exchangeable for other notes of the same series of any authorized denominations and of a like aggregate principal amount and tenor. Subject to the terms of the Indenture and the limitations applicable to global securities, notes may be presented for exchange or registration of transfer – duly endorsed or accompanied by a duly executed instrument of transfer – at the office of any transfer agent we may designate for such purpose, without service charge but upon payment of any taxes and other governmental charges, and upon satisfaction of such other reasonable requirements as are described in the Indenture.

Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, the transfer agent will be the trustee under the Indenture. We may at any time designate additional transfer agents or rescind the designation of any transfer agent or approve a change in the office through which any transfer agent acts, except that we will be required to maintain a transfer agent in each place of payment for the notes of each series.

#### Payment and Paying Agents

Principal of and interest and premium, if any, on notes issued in the form of global securities will be paid in the manner described under "Book-Entry System."

Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, the principal of and any premium and interest on notes of a particular series in the form of certificated securities will be payable at the office of the trustee or at the authorized office of any paying agent or paying agents upon presentation and surrender of such notes. We may at any time designate additional paying agents or rescind the designation of any paying agent or approve a change in the office through which any paying agent acts, except that we will be required to maintain a paying agent in each place of payment for the notes of a particular series. Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, interest on the notes of a particular series, other than interest at maturity, that are in the form of certificated securities will be paid by check payable in clearinghouse funds mailed to the person entitled thereto at such person's address as it appears on the register for such notes maintained by the trustee. All monies we pay to the trustee or a paying agent for the payment of the principal of, and premium or interest, if any, on, any note which remain unclaimed at the end of two years after such principal, premium or interest shall have become due and payable will be repaid to us, and the holder of such note thereafter may look only to us for payment thereof. However, any such payment shall be subject to escheat pursuant to state abandoned property laws.

#### Redemption

Any terms for the optional or mandatory redemption of the notes will be set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement. Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, notes will be redeemable by us only upon notice by mail not less than 30 nor more than 60 days prior to the date

fixed for redemption, and, if less than all the notes of a series are to be redeemed, the particular notes to be redeemed will be selected by such method as shall be provided for any particular series, or in the absence of any such provision, by the trustee in such manner as it shall deem fair and appropriate.

Any notice of redemption at our option may state that such redemption will be conditional upon receipt by the trustee or the paying agent or agents, on or prior to the date fixed for such redemption, of money sufficient to pay the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on, such notes and that if such money has not been so received, such notice will be of no force and effect and we will not be required to redeem such notes.

#### Consolidation, Merger and Sale or Disposition of Assets

We may not, without the consent of the holders of any notes, consolidate with or merge into any other corporation or sell, transfer, lease or otherwise dispose of our properties as or substantially as an entirety to any person, unless:

- the successor or transferee corporation or the person which receives such properties
  pursuant to such sale, transfer, lease or other disposition is a corporation organized and
  existing under the laws of the United States of America, any state thereof or the District of
  Columbia;
- the successor or transferee corporation or the person which receives such properties
  pursuant to such sale, transfer, lease or other disposition assumes by supplemental
  Indenture, in a form reasonably satisfactory to the trustee, the due and punctual payment of
  the principal of and premium and interest, if any, on all the notes outstanding under the
  Indenture and the performance of every covenant of the Indenture to be performed or
  observed by us;
- we have delivered to the trustees for such notes an officer's certificate and an opinion of counsel, each stating that the transaction complies with the Indenture and the applicable conditions precedent; and
- immediately after giving effect to the transaction, no Event of Default (see "Events of Default")
  or event that, after notice or lapse of time, or both, would become an Event of Default, shall
  have occurred and be continuing.

Upon any such consolidation, merger, sale, transfer, lease or other disposition of our properties as or substantially as an entirety, the successor corporation formed by such consolidation or into which we are merged or the person to which such sale, transfer, lease or other disposition is made shall succeed to, and be substituted for, and may exercise every right and power of, us under the Indenture with the same effect as if such successor corporation or person had been named as us therein, and we will be released from all obligations under the Indenture.

#### Modification

Without the consent of any holder of notes, the trustee for such notes and we may enter into one or more supplemental indentures for any of the following purposes:

- to supply omissions, cure any ambiguity or inconsistency or correct defects, which actions, in each case, are not prejudicial to the interests of the holders of notes of any series in any material respect;
- to change or eliminate any provision of the Indenture, provided that any such change or
  elimination will become effective with respect to such series only when there is no note of
  such series outstanding created prior to the execution of such supplemental indenture which

is entitled to the benefit of such provision, or such change or elimination is applicable only to notes of such series issued after the effective date of such change or elimination;

- to establish the form or terms of notes of any series as permitted by the Indenture;
- to evidence the succession of another corporation to us, and the assumption of our covenants in the Indenture and the notes by any permitted successor;
- to grant to or confer upon the trustee for any notes for the benefit of the holders of such notes, any additional rights, remedies, powers or authority;
- to permit the trustee for any notes to comply with any duties imposed upon it by law;
- to specify further the duties and responsibilities of, and to define further the relationship among, the trustee for any notes, any authenticating agent and any paying agent, and to evidence the succession of a successor trustee as permitted under the Indenture:
- to add to our covenants for the benefit of the holders of all or any series of outstanding notes, to add to the security of all notes, to surrender any right or power conferred upon us by the Indenture or to add any additional events of default with respect to all or any series of outstanding notes; and
- to make any other change that is not prejudicial to the holders of any notes.

Except as provided above, and except as otherwise provided in the applicable prospectus . supplement, the consent of the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the notes of all series then outstanding, considered as one class, is required for the purpose of adding any provisions to, or changing in any manner, or eliminating any of the provisions of, the Indenture pursuant to one or more supplemental indentures or of modifying or waiving in any manner the rights of the holders of the notes; provided, however, that if less than all of the series of notes outstanding are directly affected by a proposed supplemental indenture, then the consent only of the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding applicable notes of all series so directly affected, considered as one class, will be required.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no such amendment or modification may, without the consent of each holder of outstanding notes affected thereby:

- change the maturity date of the principal of any note;
- reduce the rate of interest or change the method of calculating such rate, or extend the time of payment of interest, on any note;
- reduce the principal amount of, or premium payable on, any note;
- change the coin or currency of any payment of principal of, or any premium or interest on any note;
- change the date on which any note may be redeemed or adversely affect the rights of a
  holder to institute suit for the enforcement of any payment of principal of or any premium or
  interest on any note; or
- modify the foregoing requirements or reduce the percentage of outstanding notes necessary to modify or amend the Indenture or to waive any past default.

A supplemental indenture which changes or eliminates any covenant or other provision of the Indenture which has expressly been included solely for the benefit of one or more series of notes, or which modifies the rights of the holders of notes of such series with respect to such covenant or provision, will be deemed not to affect the rights under the Indenture of the holders of the notes of any other series.

#### **Events of Default**

Unless specifically deleted in a supplemental indenture or board of directors resolution under which a series of notes is issued, or modified in any such supplemental indenture, each of the following will constitute an event of default under the Indenture with respect to notes of any series:

- failure to pay interest on the notes of such series within 30 days after the same becomes due and payable;
- failure to pay principal of or premium, if any, on any note of such series, as the case may be, within one day after the same becomes due and payable;
- failure to perform or breach of any of our other covenants or warranties in the Indenture
  (other than a covenant or warranty solely for the benefit of one or more series of notes other
  than such series) for 60 days after written notice to us by the trustee or to us and the trustee
  by the holders of at least 33% in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding applicable
  notes of such series;
- certain events of bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, assignment or receivership; or
- any other event of default specified in the applicable prospectus supplement with respect to notes of a particular series.

No event of default with respect to the notes of a particular series necessarily constitutes an event of default with respect to the notes of any other series issued under the Indenture.

If an event of default with respect to any series of notes occurs and is continuing, then either the trustee for such series or the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding notes of such series, by notice in writing, may declare the principal amount of and interest on all of the notes of such series to be due and payable immediately; provided, however, that if an event of default occurs and is continuing with respect to more than one series of notes under the Indenture, the trustee for such series or the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding notes of all such series, considered as one class, may make such declaration of acceleration and not the holders of the notes of any one of such series.

At any time after an acceleration with respect to the notes of any series has been declared, but before a judgment or decree for the payment of the money due has been obtained, the event or events of default giving rise to such acceleration will be waived, and the acceleration will be rescinded and annulled, if

- we pay or deposit with the trustee for such series a sum sufficient to pay all matured installments of interest on all notes of such series, the principal of and premium, if any, on the notes of such series which have become due otherwise than by acceleration and interest thereon at the rate or rates specified in such notes, interest upon overdue installments of interest at the rate or rates specified in such notes, to the extent that payment of such interest is lawful, and all amounts due to the trustee for such series under the Indenture; and
- any other event or events of default with respect to the notes of such series, other than the nonpayment of the principal of and accrued interest on the notes of such series which has

become due solely by such acceleration, have been cured or waived as provided in the Indenture.

However, no such waiver or rescission and annulment shall extend to or shall affect any subsequent default or impair any related right.

Subject to the provisions of the Indenture relating to the duties of the trustee in case an event of default shall occur and be continuing, the trustee generally will be under no obligation to exercise any of its rights or powers under the Indenture at the request or direction of any of the holders unless such holders have offered to the trustee reasonable security or indemnity satisfactory to it. Subject to such provisions for the indemnification of the trustee and certain other limitations contained in the Indenture, the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding notes of any series will have the right to direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the trustee, or of exercising any trust or power conferred on the trustee, with respect to the notes of that series; provided, however, that if an event of default occurs and is continuing with respect to more than one series of notes, the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding notes of all those series, considered as one class, will have the right to make such direction, and not the holders of the notes of any one series. Any direction provided by the holders shall not be in conflict with any rule of law or with the Indenture and will not involve the trustee in personal liability in circumstances where reasonable indemnity would not, in the trustee's sole discretion, be adequate and the trustee may take any other action it deems proper that is not inconsistent with such direction.

The holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding notes of any series may waive any past default under the Indenture on behalf of all holders of notes of that series with respect to the notes of that series, except a default in the payment of principal of or any premium or interest on such notes. No holder of notes of any series may institute any proceeding with respect to the Indenture, or for the appointment of a receiver or a trustee, or for any other remedy, unless such holder has previously given to the trustee for such series written notice of a continuing event of default with respect to the notes of such series, the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding notes of all series in respect of which an event of default has occurred and is continuing, considered as one class, have made written request to the trustee for such series to institute such proceeding and have offered such reasonable indemnity as the trustee may require, and the trustee for such series has failed to institute such proceeding within 60 days after such notice, request and offer. Furthermore, no holder of notes of any series will be entitled to institute any such action if and to the extent that such action would disturb or prejudice the rights of other holders of those notes.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, each holder of notes of any series has the right, which is absolute and unconditional, to receive payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on such notes when due and to institute suit for the enforcement of any such payment, and such rights may not be impaired without the consent of that holder of notes.

The trustee, within 90 days after it receives notice of the occurrence of a default with respect to the notes of any series, is required to give the holders of the notes of that series notice of such default, unless cured or waived, but, except in the case of default in the payment of principal of, or premium, if any, or interest on, the notes of that series, the trustee may withhold such notice if it determines in good faith that it is in the interest of such holders to do so. We will be required to deliver to the trustees for the notes each year a certificate as to whether or not, to the knowledge of the officers signing such certificate, we are in compliance with all conditions and covenants under the Indenture, determined without regard to any period of grace or requirement of notice under the Indenture.

#### **Defeasance and Discharge**

Unless the applicable prospectus supplement states otherwise, we may elect either:

 to defease and be discharged from any and all obligations in respect of the notes of any series then outstanding under the Indenture (except for certain obligations to register the

- transfer or exchange of the notes of such series, replace stolen, lost or mutilated notes, maintain paying agencies and hold monies for payment in trust); or
- to be released from the obligations of the Indenture with respect to the notes of any series under any covenants applicable to the notes of such series which are subject to covenant defeasance as described in the Indenture, supplemental indenture or other instrument establishing such series.

In the case of either (1) or (2), the following conditions must be met:

- we will be required to deposit, in trust, with the trustee money or U.S. government obligations, which through the payment of interest on those obligations and principal of those obligations in accordance with their terms will provide money, in an amount sufficient, without reinvestment, to pay all the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the notes of such series on the dates payments are due (which may include one or more redemption dates designated by us),
- no event of default or event which with the giving of notice or lapse of time, or both, would become an event of default under the Indenture must have occurred and be continuing on the date of the deposit, and 91 days must have passed after the deposit has been made and, during that period, certain events of default must not have occurred and be continuing as of the end of that period,
- the deposit must not cause the trustee to have any conflicting interest with respect to our other securities,
- we must have delivered an opinion of counsel to the effect that the holders will not recognize income, gain or loss for federal income tax purposes (and, in the case of paragraph (1) above, such opinion of counsel must be based on a ruling of the Internal Revenue Service or other change in applicable federal income tax law) as a result of the deposit or defeasance and will be subject to federal income tax in the same amounts, in the same manner and at the same times as if the deposit and defeasance had not occurred, and
- we must have delivered an officer's certificate to the trustee as provided in the Indenture.

We may exercise our defeasance option under paragraph (1) with respect to notes of any series notwithstanding our prior exercise of our covenant defeasance option under paragraph (2). If we exercise our defeasance option for notes of any series, payment of the notes of such series may not be accelerated because of a subsequent event of default. If we exercise our covenant defeasance option for notes of any series, payment of the notes of such series may not be accelerated by reference to a subsequent breach of any of the covenants noted under clause (2) in the preceding paragraph. In the event we fail to comply with our remaining obligations with respect to the notes of any series under the Indenture after exercising our covenant defeasance option and the notes of such series are declared due and payable because of the subsequent occurrence of any event of default, the amount of money and U.S. government obligations on deposit with the trustee may be insufficient to pay amounts due on the notes of such series at the time of the acceleration resulting from that event of default. However, we will remain liable for those payments.

#### Resignation or Removal of Trustee

The trustee may resign at any time upon written notice to us specifying the day upon which the resignation is to take effect and such resignation will take effect immediately upon the later of the appointment of a successor trustee and such specified day. The trustee may be removed at any time with respect to notes of any series by an instrument or concurrent instruments in writing filed with the trustee and signed by the holders, or their attorneys-in-fact, of a majority in aggregate principal amount of that series of notes then outstanding. In addition, so long as no event of default or event which, with the giving

of notice or lapse of time or both, would become an event of default has occurred and is continuing, we may remove the trustee upon notice to the holder of each note outstanding and the trustee, and appoint a successor trustee.

#### Concerning the Trustee

As of September 30, 2007, the trustee and its affiliates were the trustee for \$1,151.8 million of our secured and unsecured debt under fourteen separate indentures, including Environmental Improvement Revenue Refunding debt issued by certain governmental entities. In addition, an affiliate of the trustee is one of the lenders under credit agreements with us and our parent under which an aggregate of \$1 billion may be borrowed. An affiliate of the trustee is also a depository for funds and performs other services for and transacts other banking business with our affiliates and us in the normal course and may do so in the future. The Indenture provides that our obligations to compensate the trustee and reimburse the trustee for expenses, disbursements and advances will be secured by a lien prior to that of the notes upon the property and funds held or collected by the trustee as such, except funds held in trust for the benefit of the holders of particular notes.

#### **Governing Law**

The Indenture and the related notes will be governed by New York law.

#### DESCRIPTION OF GENERAL MORTGAGE BONDS

We will issue each series of general mortgage bonds under the General Mortgage Indenture and Deed of Trust, dated as of December 1, 1986, as supplemented from time to time, executed by the Company to UMB Bank, N.A. (formerly United Missouri Bank of Kansas City, N.A.), as trustee. We refer in this prospectus to the general mortgage bonds as the "mortgage bonds," to the mortgage as the "Mortgage Indenture" and to UMB Bank, N.A. as the "Mortgage Trustee."

We have summarized selected provisions of the Mortgage Indenture below. However, the following statements are an outline only, do not purport to be complete, and are qualified in their entirety by reference to the Mortgage Indenture (copies of which are filed as exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part). This outline incorporates by reference certain articles and sections of the Mortgage Indenture specifically enumerated below and is qualified in its entirety by such reference. Certain of the terms used below are used in this prospectus with the meanings ascribed to such terms by the Mortgage Indenture.

The following sets forth certain general terms and provisions of the mortgage bonds. The particular terms of the series of mortgage bonds offered by any prospectus supplement will be described in that prospectus supplement. Any terms of the mortgage bonds that are not summarized herein will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

#### **Security and Priority**

The Company's principal plants and properties, insofar as they constitute real estate, are owned; certain other facilities of the Company are located on premises held by the Company under leases, permits or easements; and the Company's electric transmission and distribution lines and systems (which constitute a substantial portion of the Company's investment in physical property) are for the most part located over or under highways, streets, other public places or property owned by others for which permits, grants, easements, licenses or franchises (deemed satisfactory but without examination of underlying land titles) have been obtained.

The Mortgage Indenture constitutes a first mortgage lien upon substantially all of the fixed property and franchises of the Company (except property which is released from the lien of the Mortgage Indenture, as described below), consisting principally of electric generating plants, electric transmission and distribution lines and systems, and buildings, subject to encumbrances permitted under the Mortgage Indenture. (*Mortgage Indenture Section 1.03(ff)*.) The Mortgage Indenture subjects to the lien thereof property, of the character initially mortgaged, which is acquired by the Company subsequent to December 1, 1986. Such after-acquired property may be subject to prior liens which secure debt outstanding at the time of such acquisition in an amount not in excess of 75% of the cost or fair value, whichever is less, of such after-acquired property at such time. (*Mortgage Indenture Section 1.03(ff)(xv)*.)

The property excepted from the lien of the Mortgage Indenture consists principally of: cash and securities (unless deposited with the Mortgage Trustee); accounts receivable; contracts and operating agreements not pledged or required to be pledged with the Mortgage Trustee; equipment, spare parts, tools, materials, supplies and fuel held for sale or lease in the ordinary course of business or for use or consumption in, or the operation of, any properties of, or for the benefit of, the Company, or held in advance of use thereof for maintenance or fixed capital purposes; electricity, gas, steam, water, ice and other materials, products or services for sale, distribution or use; vehicles; leasehold interests and leasehold improvements; minerals and mineral rights; nuclear fuel, cores and materials; communications equipment, computers and office furniture; and other real and personal property which is not an integral part of the electric and any steam generating, transmission and distribution operations of the Company. (Mortgage Indenture Section 1.03(s).)

The mortgage bonds will rank equally and ratably (except as to sinking funds and other analogous funds established for the exclusive benefit of a particular series) with all mortgage bonds, regardless of series, from time to time issued and outstanding under the Mortgage Indenture.

The Mortgage Indenture provides that the Mortgage Trustee shall have a lien on the mortgaged property, prior to the mortgage bonds, for the payment of its reasonable compensation and expenses and for indemnity against certain liabilities. (*Mortgage Indenture Section 14.09*.)

## Issuance of Additional Mortgage Bonds

The maximum principal amount of mortgage bonds which may be issued under the Mortgage Indenture is not limited. Mortgage bonds of any series may be issued from time to time in principal amounts:

- not exceeding 75% of the amount of unbonded "bondable property;"
- equal to the principal amount of mortgage bonds and "prior lien bonds" which have been
  retired or purchased or acquired by the Company since the date of the Mortgage Indenture or
  are then being retired or purchased or acquired by the Company, and which have not
  theretofore been bonded; or
- equal to the amount of cash deposited with the Mortgage Trustee for such purpose.

(Mortgage Indenture Articles III, IV, V and VI.)

"Bondable property" includes: the Company's electric and any steam generating, transmission and distribution properties; construction work in progress; property in the process of purchase to which the Company has legal title; fractional and undivided interests of the Company in certain property owned jointly or in common with other persons; engineering, financial, economic, environmental, geological and legal or other surveys, data processing equipment and software associated with the acquisition or construction of property; paving, grading and other improvements to property owned by others but used by the Company; and certain property owned by the Company located on property owned by others, including governments. (*Mortgage Indenture Section 1.03(h)*.)

"Prior lien bonds" means any indebtedness secured by liens either (i) existing both at and immediately prior to the acquisition of the property by the Company, or (ii) created as purchase money mortgages at the time the Company acquires the property, and in each case ranking prior to, or on a parity with, the lien of the Mortgage Indenture. (Mortgage Indenture Sections 1.03(hh) and 1.03(ii).)

The amount of bondable property is the lesser of its cost or fair value determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in effect at December 1, 1986 or, at the option of the Company, at the date of their determination, minus 133 1/3% of the principal amount of all prior lien bonds which are (a) outstanding and secured by a prior lien on bondable property owned by the Company at December 1, 1986, and (b) outstanding and secured by a prior lien, other than due solely to an after-acquired property clause, on bondable property at the date of its acquisition by the Company after such date. (*Mortgage Indenture Section 1.03(h)*.) In determining generally accepted accounting principles, the Company may conform to accounting orders from any governmental regulatory commission. (*Mortgage Indenture Section 1.03(u)*.)

#### Withdrawal of Certain Cash

Cash deposited with the Mortgage Trustee as a basis for the issue of additional mortgage bonds may be withdrawn by the Company in the amount of 75% of the lesser of the cost or fair value of unbonded bondable property that is bonded, after deducting 133 1/3% of the principal amount of all prior lien bonds which are (a) outstanding and secured by a prior lien on such bondable property owned by the Company at December 1, 1986, and (b) outstanding and secured by a prior lien, other than due solely to

an after-acquired property clause, on bondable property at the date of its acquisition by the Company after such date.

Any other cash deposited with the Mortgage Trustee may be withdrawn by the Company in the amount of:

- 100% of the lesser of the cost or fair value of unbonded bondable property that is bonded, after deducting 133 1/3% of the principal amount of all prior lien bonds which are (a) outstanding and secured by a prior lien on such bondable property owned by the Company at December 1, 1986, and (b) outstanding and secured by a prior lien, other than due solely to an after-acquired property clause, on bondable property at the date of its acquisition by the Company after such date; or
- the principal amount of mortgage bonds and prior lien bonds which have been retired or purchased or acquired by the Company since the date of the Mortgage Indenture or are then being retired or purchased or acquired by the Company, and which have not theretofore been bonded.

(Mortgage Indenture Article XI.)

#### Release and Substitution of Property

Mortgaged property may be released from the lien of the Mortgage Indenture:

- if after such release the fair value of the remaining mortgaged property equals or exceeds a sum equal to 133 1/3% of the aggregate principal amount of outstanding mortgage bonds and prior lien bonds outstanding; or
- if, with some limitations, the fair value of the mortgaged property to be released is less than 1/2 of 1% of the aggregate principal amount of mortgage bonds and prior lien bonds outstanding, provided that the aggregate fair value of mortgaged property released in this manner in any period of 12 consecutive calendar months shall not exceed 1% of the aggregate principal amount of the outstanding mortgage bonds and prior lien bonds outstanding; or
- on the basis of (a) the deposit of cash, governmental obligations or purchase money obligations, (b) bondable property to be acquired by the Company with the proceeds of, or otherwise in connection with, such release, or (c) a waiver of the right to issue mortgage bonds on the basis of mortgage bonds or prior lien bonds which have been retired or purchased or acquired by the Company after December 1, 1986, and have not theretofore been bonded.

(Mortgage Indenture Article X.)

#### **Events of Default**

The Mortgage Indenture provides generally that a default occurs upon:

- failure for 90 days to pay interest when due on any mortgage bonds;
- failure to pay when due the principal of, and premium, if any, on any mortgage bonds issued under the Mortgage Indenture or the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on any outstanding prior lien bonds, beyond any specified grace period;
- failure to perform or observe for 90 days after notice of such failure any other of the covenants or conditions of the Company in the Mortgage Indenture, any applicable

supplemental indenture, or any of the mortgage bonds issued under the Mortgage Indenture or any applicable supplemental indenture; and

the occurrence of insolvency, bankruptcy, receivership or similar events.

In case of default, the Mortgage Trustee or the holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding mortgage bonds may declare the principal of and interest on all mortgage bonds to be immediately due and payable, but the holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding mortgage bonds may rescind such declaration if such default has been cured. (*Mortgage Indenture Sections 12.02 and 12.04*.)

The Company is required to file with the Mortgage Trustee such information, documents and reports with respect to compliance by the Company with the conditions and covenants of the Mortgage Indenture as may be required by the rules and regulations of the SEC. (*Mortgage Indenture Section 17.02*.) The Company is not required to furnish any statement as to the absence of any default.

#### Modification of the Mortgage Indenture

In general, modifications or alterations of the Mortgage Indenture and any applicable supplemental indenture and of the rights or obligations of the Company and of the bondholders, as well as waivers of compliance with the Mortgage Indenture (including any applicable supplemental indenture) may be made, with the consent of the holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding mortgage bonds affected by the proposed action, if approved by the Company. Provisions relating to such modifications or alterations and waivers of compliance are subject to certain restrictions designed to safeguard the positions of the bondholders and the Mortgage Trustee with respect to certain matters of basic importance, including payment of principal of and interest and premium (if any) on mortgage bonds and creation of liens ranking prior to or on a parity with the lien of the Mortgage Indenture as to any mortgaged property. (Mortgage Indenture Section 12.24 and Article XV.)

#### **Concerning the Mortgage Trustee**

The Company and its officers and directors have no material relationships with the Mortgage Trustee except that

- the Company maintains general banking accounts with the Mortgage Trustee,
- the Mortgage Trustee is one of the lenders under credit agreements with us and our parent aggregating \$1 billion, and
- our Chairman of the Board is a director of the parent of the Mortgage Trustee.

The Mortgage Indenture provides that the holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding mortgage bonds have the right to require the Mortgage Trustee to take certain action on behalf of the bondholders, but under certain circumstances the Mortgage Trustee may decline to follow such directions or to exercise certain of its powers. (*Mortgage Indenture Section 12.05.*) Prior to taking any such action the Mortgage Trustee is entitled to indemnity satisfactory to the Mortgage Trustee against costs, expenses and liabilities which may be incurred in the course of such action. (*Mortgage Indenture Section 12.16.*) This right does not, however, impair the absolute right of any holder of mortgage bonds to enforce payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on such mortgage bonds when due. (*Mortgage Indenture Section 12.23.*) The Company has the right to remove the Mortgage Trustee and appoint a successor Mortgage Trustee not more frequently than once in any ten-year period. (*Mortgage Indenture Section 14.18.*)

#### **BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM**

Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, each series of bonds or notes initially be issued in the form of one or more global securities, in registered form, without coupons. The global security will be deposited with, or on behalf of, the depository, and registered in the name of the depository or a nominee of the depository. Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, the depository for any global securities will be The Depository Trust Company, or DTC.

DTC will act as depository for the global securities. The global securities will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co., DTC's partnership nominee, or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully-registered global security certificate will be issued for each issue of the global securities, each in the aggregate principal amount of such issue, and will be deposited with DTC. If, however, the aggregate principal amount of any issue of a series of bonds or notes exceeds \$500 million, one certificate will be issued with respect to each \$500 million of principal amount and an additional certificate will be issued with respect to any remaining principal amount of such issue.

The following descriptions of operations and procedures of DTC are provided solely as a matter of convenience. These operations and procedures are solely within DTC's control and are subject to changes by DTC from time to time. We take no responsibility for these operations and procedures and urge you to contact DTC or its participants directly to discuss these matters. DTC has advised us as follows:

- DTC is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a
  "banking organization" within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the
  Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York
  Uniform Commercial Code, and a "clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of
  Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
- DTC holds and provides asset servicing for securities that its direct participants deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among direct participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities through electronic computerized bookentry transfers and pledges between direct participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates.
- Direct participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and certain other organizations.
- DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation, or DTCC.
  DTCC, in turn, is owned by a number of direct participants of DTC and Members of the
  National Securities Clearing Corporation, Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, and Emerging
  Markets Clearing Corporation, each also a subsidiary of DTCC, as well as by the New York
  Stock Exchange, Inc., the American Stock Exchange LLC, and the National Association of
  Securities Dealers. Inc.
- Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a direct participant, either directly or indirectly, which are referred to as indirect participants and, together with the direct participants, the participants. The underwriters, dealers or agents of any of the securities may be direct participants of DTC.
- DTC has Standard & Poor's highest rating: AAA. The DTC rules applicable to its participants
  are on file with the SEC. More information about DTC can be found at <a href="https://www.dtcc.com">www.dtcc.com</a> and
  <a href="https://www.dtc.org">www.dtc.org</a>.

Purchases of global securities under the DTC system must be made by or through direct participants, which will receive a credit for such purchases of global securities on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each global security, or the beneficial owner, is in turn to be recorded on the direct and indirect participants' records. Beneficial owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the direct or indirect participant through which the beneficial owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the global securities are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of direct and indirect participants acting on behalf of beneficial owners. Beneficial owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in the global securities, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the global securities is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all global securities deposited by direct participants with DTC are registered in the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co. or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of global securities with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual beneficial owners of the global securities; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the direct participants to whose accounts such global securities are credited, which may or may not be the beneficial owners. The participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to direct participants, by direct participants to indirect participants, and by direct participants and indirect participants to beneficial owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Beneficial owners of global securities may wish to take certain steps to augment transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the global securities, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the security documents. For example, beneficial owners of global securities may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the global securities for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to beneficial owners; in the alternative, beneficial owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of the notices be provided directly to them.

If the global securities are redeemable, redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the global securities within an issue are being redeemed, DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each direct participant in such issue to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the global securities unless authorized by a direct participant in accordance with DTC's procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an omnibus proxy to us as soon as possible after the record date. The omnibus proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those direct participants whose accounts the global securities are credited on the record date, identified in a listing attached to the omnibus proxy.

Principal, interest and premium payments, if any, on the global securities will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit direct participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from us or the Trustee, on the payable date in accordance with the respective holdings shown on DTC's records. Payments by participants to beneficial owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street name," and will be the responsibility of such participant and not of DTC, its nominee, the Trustee, or us, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of principal, interest and premium, if any, on any of the aforementioned securities represented by global securities to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the Trustee and us. Disbursement of such payments to direct participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the beneficial owners will be the responsibility of the participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities depository with respect to the global securities at any time by giving reasonable notice to us or the Trustee. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor securities depository is not obtained, certificates representing the securities are required to be printed and delivered.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been obtained from sources, including DTC, that we believe to be reliable, but we take no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.

None of the Trustee, any successor trustee, us or any agent for payment on or registration of transfer or exchange of any global security will have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the records relating to or payments made on account of beneficial interests in such global security or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to such beneficial interests.

#### **PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION**

We may sell the securities in one or more of the following ways from time to time: (i) to underwriters for resale to the public or to institutional investors; (ii) directly to institutional investors; or (iii) through agents to the public or to institutional investors. The prospectus supplement with respect to each series of securities will set forth the terms of the offering of such securities, including the name or names of any underwriters or agents, the purchase price of such securities, and the proceeds to us from such sale, any underwriting discounts or agency fees and other items constituting underwriters' or agents' compensation, any initial public offering price, any discounts or concessions allowed or reallowed or paid to dealers and any securities exchange on which such securities may be listed.

If underwriters participate in the sale, such securities will be acquired by the underwriters for their own account and may be resold from time to time in one or more transactions, including negotiated transactions, at a fixed public offering price or at varying prices determined at the time of sale. The securities may be offered to the public either through underwriting syndicates represented by one or more managing underwriters or directly by one or more of those firms. The specific managing underwriter or underwriters, if any, will be named in the prospectus supplement relating to the particular securities together with the members of the underwriting syndicate, if any.

Unless otherwise set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement, the obligations of the underwriters to purchase any series of securities will be subject to certain conditions precedent and the underwriters will be obligated to purchase all of such securities being offered, if any are purchased.

We may sell the securities directly or through agents we designate from time to time. The applicable prospectus supplement will set forth the name of any agent involved in the offer or sale of the securities in respect of which such prospectus supplement is delivered and any commissions payable by us to such agent. Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, any agent will be acting on a best efforts basis for the period of its appointment.

Underwriters and agents may be entitled under agreements entered into with us to indemnification against certain civil liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Underwriters and agents may engage in transactions with, or perform services for, us in the ordinary course of business.

Each series of securities will be a new issue of securities and will have no established trading market. Any underwriters to whom securities are sold for public offering and sale may make a market in such securities, but such underwriters will not be obligated to do so and may discontinue any market making at any time without notice. The securities may or may not be listed on a national securities exchange.

#### **LEGAL MATTERS**

Unless otherwise specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, legal matters with respect to the securities offered under this prospectus will be passed upon for us by Mark English, General Counsel and Assistant Corporate Secretary of our parent, Great Plains Energy Incorporated, and Sidley Austin LLP, Chicago, Illinois, and for the underwriters, dealers, purchasers or agents by Davis Polk & Wardwell, Menlo Park, California. At December 1, 2007, Mr. English owned beneficially 6,600 shares of our common stock, including restricted stock, and 6,497 performance shares, which may be paid in shares of common stock at a later date based on the performance of our parent.

#### **EXPERTS**

The consolidated financial statements, the related financial statement schedules and management's report on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of Kansas City Power & Light Company and its subsidiaries, incorporated in this prospectus by reference from the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Kansas City Power & Light Company have been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their reports (which reports

(1) express an unqualified opinion on the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules and include an explanatory paragraph regarding the adoption of new accounting standards SFAS No. 158, *Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans*, FASB Staff Position (FSP) No. AUG-AIR1, *Accounting for Planned Major Maintenance Activities*, and FIN 47, *Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations*, (2) express an unqualified opinion on management's assessment regarding the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, and (3) express an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting), which are incorporated herein by reference, and have been so incorporated in reliance upon the reports of such firm given upon their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

#### WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We file annual, quarterly and current reports and other information with the SEC through the SEC's Electronic Data Gathering, Analysis and Retrieval system and these filings are publicly available through the SEC's website (http://www.sec.gov). You may read and copy such material at the Public Reference Room of the SEC at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. You may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.

The SEC allows us to "incorporate by reference" into this prospectus the information we file with it. This means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to the documents containing the information. The information we incorporate by reference is considered to be included in and an important part of this prospectus and should be read with the same care. Information that we file later with the SEC that is incorporated by reference into this prospectus will automatically update and supersede this information. We are incorporating by reference into this prospectus the following documents that we have filed with the SEC and any subsequent filings we make with the SEC under Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (excluding information deemed to be furnished and not filed with the SEC) until the offering of the securities described in this prospectus is completed:

- Our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006
- Our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarterly periods ended March 31, 2007, June 30, 2007 and September 30, 2007
- Our Current Reports on Form 8-K dated:
  - February 1, 2007 and filed with the SEC on February 2, 2007;
  - March 1, 2007 and filed with the SEC on March 1, 2007;
  - March 1, 2007 and filed with the SEC on March 2, 2007;
  - March 2 2007 and filed with the SEC on March 2, 2007;
  - March 15, 2007 and filed with the SEC on March 20, 2007;
  - March 19, 2007 and filed with the SEC on March 20, 2007;
  - April 30, 2007 and filed with the SEC on May 4, 2007;
  - June 4, 2007 and filed with the SEC on June 4, 2007;
  - July 10, 2007 and filed with the SEC on July 16, 2007;
  - August 8, 2007 and filed with the SEC on August 9, 2007;

- September 12, 2007 and filed with the SEC on September 13, 2007;
- September 19, 2007 and filed with the SEC on September 24, 2007;
- November 20, 2007 and filed with the SEC on November 26, 2007; and
- December 6, 2007 and filed with the SEC on December 10, 2007.

We and our parent company, Great Plains Energy Incorporated, separately filed the combined Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and the Current Reports on Form 8-K listed above. However, the information contained in those combined reports relating solely to our parent and its subsidiaries (other than KCP&L and its consolidated subsidiaries), including Strategic Energy, was separately filed by Great Plains Energy Incorporated on its behalf, and the information contained in those combined reports relating solely to KCP&L and its consolidated subsidiaries was separately filed by us. We do not intend to incorporate by reference into this prospectus the information relating to Great Plains Energy Incorporated and its subsidiaries (other than KCP&L and its consolidated subsidiaries), and we make no representation as to the information relating to Great Plains Energy Incorporated and its subsidiaries (other than KCP&L and its consolidated subsidiaries) contained in such combined reports. The only information you should rely upon in determining whether to invest in the securities offered hereby is the information of KCP&L and its consolidated subsidiaries contained in this prospectus, the information separately provided by KCP&L and its consolidated subsidiaries in the documents incorporated by reference herein and any free writing prospectus used in connection with the offering of securities described in this prospectus.

Our website is <a href="www.kcpl.com">www.kcpl.com</a>. Information contained on our website is not incorporated herein. We make available, free of charge, on or through our website, our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the SEC. In addition, we make available on or through our website all other reports, notifications and certifications filed electronically with the SEC. You may obtain a free copy of our filings with the SEC by writing or telephoning us at the following address: Kansas City Power & Light Company, 1201 Walnut Street, Kansas City, Missouri 64106-2124 (Telephone No.: 816-556-2200), Attention: Corporate Secretary, or by contacting us on our website.

#### PART II

#### **INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS**

#### Item 14. Other Expenses of Issuance and Distribution.

Expenses payable by Kansas City Power & Light Company for the sale of its securities, other than underwriting discount and commissions, are estimated as follows:

Securities and Exchange Commission registration fee	\$ 27,630
Legal fees and expenses (including Blue Sky fees)	250,000
Accounting fees and expenses	100,000
Printing fees and expenses	100,000
Trustee fees and expenses	50,000
Rating agency fees	400,000
Miscellaneous	73,370
Total	\$ 1,000,000

#### Item 15. Indemnification of Directors and Officers.

Missouri Revised Statutes (RSMo) Section 351.355 (2006) provides as follows:

1. A corporation created under the laws of this state may indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, other than an action by or in the right of the corporation, by reason of the fact that he or she is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against expenses, including attorneys' fees, judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him or her in connection with such action, suit, or proceeding if he or she acted in good faith and in a manner he or she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was unlawful. The termination of any action, suit, or proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall not, of itself,

<sup>(1)</sup> An unutilized filing fee of \$405 that was previously paid in connection with unsold debt securities registered pursuant to a Form S-3 registration statement (Registration No. 333-108215), which was filed by Kansas City Power & Light Company on August 26, 2003, will be applied to the filing fee payable pursuant to this registration statement.

<sup>(2)</sup> Estimated amounts of fees and expenses to be incurred in connection with the registration of the debt securities pursuant to this Registration Statement. The actual amounts of fees and expenses will be determined from time to time.

create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner which he or she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had reasonable cause to believe that his or her conduct was unlawful.

- 2. The corporation may indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action or suit by or in the right of the corporation to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of the fact that he or she is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against expenses, including attorneys' fees, and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him or her in connection with the defense or settlement of the action or suit if he or she acted in good faith and in a manner he or she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation; except that no indemnification shall be made in respect of any claim, issue or matter as to which such person shall have been adjudged to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of his or her duty to the corporation unless and only to the extent that the court in which the action or suit was brought determines upon application that, despite the adjudication of liability and in view of all the circumstances of the case, the person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for such expenses which the court shall deem proper.
- 3. Except as otherwise provided in the Articles of Incorporation or the bylaws, to the extent that a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation has been successful on the merits or otherwise in defense of any action, suit, or proceeding referred to in subsections 1 and 2 of this section, or in defense of any claim, issue or matter therein, he or she shall be indemnified against expenses, including attorneys' fees, actually and reasonably incurred by him or her in connection with the action, suit or proceeding.
- 4. Any indemnification under subsections 1 and 2 of this section, unless ordered by a court, shall be made by the corporation only as authorized in the specific case upon a determination that indemnification of the director, officer, employee or agent is proper in the circumstances because he or she has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in this section. The determination shall be made by the board of directors by a majority vote of a quorum consisting of directors who were not parties to the action, suit, or proceeding, or if such a quorum is not obtainable, or even if obtainable a quorum of disinterested directors so directs, by independent legal counsel in a written opinion, or by the shareholders.
- 5. Expenses incurred in defending any civil or criminal, administrative, or investigative action, suit or proceeding may be paid by the corporation in advance of the final disposition of the action, suit, or proceeding as authorized by the board of directors in the specific case upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of the director, officer, employee or agent to repay such amount unless it shall ultimately be determined that he or she is entitled to be indemnified by the corporation as authorized in this section.
- 6. The indemnification provided by this section shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which those seeking indemnification may be entitled under the Articles of Incorporation or bylaws or any agreement, vote of shareholders or disinterested directors or otherwise, both as to action in his or her official capacity and as to action in another capacity while holding such office, and shall continue as to a person who has ceased to be a director, officer, employee or agent and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors and administrators of such a person.
- 7. A corporation created under the laws of this state shall have the power to give any further indemnity, in addition to the indemnity authorized or contemplated under other subsections of this section, including subsection 6, to any person who is or was a director, officer, employee or agent, or to any person who is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, provided such further indemnity is either (i) authorized, directed, or provided for in the Articles of Incorporation of the corporation or any duly adopted amendment thereof or (ii) is

authorized, directed, or provided for in any bylaw or agreement of the corporation which has been adopted by a vote of the shareholders of the corporation, and provided further that no such indemnity shall indemnify any person from or on account of such person's conduct which was finally adjudged to have been knowingly fraudulent, deliberately dishonest or willful misconduct. Nothing in this subsection shall be deemed to limit the power of the corporation under subsection 6 of this section to enact bylaws or to enter into agreements without shareholder adoption of the same.

- The corporation may purchase and maintain insurance or another arrangement on behalf of any person who is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any liability asserted against him or her and incurred by him or her in any such capacity, or arising out of his or her status as such, whether or not the corporation would have the power to indemnify him or her against such liability under the provisions of this section. Without limiting the power of the corporation to procure or maintain any kind of insurance or other arrangement the corporation may for the benefit of persons indemnified by the corporation create a trust fund, establish any form of self insurance, secure its indemnity obligation by grant of a security interest or other lien on the assets of the corporation, or establish a letter of credit, guaranty, or surety arrangement. The insurance or other arrangement may be procured, maintained, or established within the corporation or with any insurer or other person deemed appropriate by the board of directors regardless of whether all or part of the stock or other securities of the insurer or other person are owned in whole or in part by the corporation. In the absence of fraud the judgment of the board of directors as to the terms and conditions of the insurance or other arrangement and the identity of the insurer or other person participating in an arrangement shall be conclusive and the insurance or arrangement shall not be voidable and shall not subject the directors approving the insurance or arrangement to liability on any ground regardless of whether directors participating in the approval are beneficiaries of the insurance arrangement.
- 9. Any provision of this chapter to the contrary notwithstanding, the provisions of this section shall apply to all existing and new domestic corporations, including but not limited to banks, trust companies, insurance companies, building and loan associations, savings bank and safe deposit companies, mortgage loan companies, corporations formed for benevolent, religious, scientific or educational purposes and nonprofit corporations.
- 10. For the purpose of this section, references to "the corporation" include all constituent corporations absorbed in a consolidation or merger as well as the resulting or surviving corporation so that any person who is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of such a constituent corporation or is or was serving at the request of such constituent corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise shall stand in the same position under the provisions of this section with respect to the resulting or surviving corporation as he or she would if he or she had served the resulting or surviving corporation in the same capacity.
- 11. For purposes of this section, the term "other enterprise" shall include employee benefit plans; the term "fines" shall include any excise taxes assessed on a person with respect to an employee benefit plan; and the term "serving at the request of the corporation" shall include any service as a director, officer, employee, or agent of the corporation which imposes duties on, or involves services by, such director, officer, employee, or agent with respect to an employee benefit plan, its participants, or beneficiaries; and a person who acted in good faith and in a manner he or she reasonably believed to be in the interest of the participants and beneficiaries of an employee benefit plan shall be deemed to have acted in a manner "not opposed to the best interests of the corporation" as referred to in this section.

The officers and directors of the Company have entered into indemnification agreements with Great Plains Energy Incorporated (the "Company") indemnifying such officers and directors to the extent allowed under the above RSMo Section 351.355 (2005).

Article XIII of the Restated Articles of Consolidation of the Company provides as follows:

ARTICLE THIRTEENTH. (a) Right to Indemnification. Each person who was or is made a party or is threatened to be made a party to any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason of the fact that he or she is or was a director or officer of the Company or is or was an employee of the Company acting within the scope and course of his or her employment or is or was serving at the request of the Company as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation or of a partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, including service with respect to employee benefit plans, shall be indemnified and held harmless by the Company to the fullest extent authorized by The Missouri General and Business Corporation Law, as the same exists or may hereafter be amended, against all expense, liability and loss (including attorneys' fees, judgments, fines, ERISA excise taxes or penalties and amounts paid to or to be paid in settlement) actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection therewith. The Company may in its discretion by action of its Board of Directors provide indemnification to agents of the Company as provided for in this ARTICLE THIRTEENTH. Such indemnification shall continue as to a person who has ceased to be a director, officer, employee or agent and shall inure to the benefit of his or her heirs, executors and administrators.

- (b) Rights Not Exclusive. The indemnification and other rights provided by this ARTICLE THIRTEENTH shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which a person may be entitled under any applicable law, By-laws of the Company, agreement, vote of shareholders or disinterested directors or otherwise, both as to action in such person's official capacity and as to action in any other capacity while holding the office of director or officer, and the Company is hereby expressly authorized by the shareholders of the Company to enter into agreements with its directors and officers which provide greater indemnification rights than that generally provided by The Missouri General and Business Corporation Law; provided, however, that no such further indemnity shall indemnify any person from or on account of such director's or officer's conduct which was finally adjudged to have been knowingly fraudulent, deliberately dishonest or willful misconduct. Any such agreement providing for further indemnity entered into pursuant to this ARTICLE THIRTEENTH after the date of approval of this ARTICLE THIRTEENTH by the Company's shareholders need not be further approved by the shareholders of the Company in order to be fully effective and enforceable.
- (c) Insurance. The Company may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who was or is a director, officer, employee or agent of the Company, or was or is serving at the request of the Company as a director, officer, employee or agent of another company, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any liability asserted against or incurred by such person in any such capacity, or arising out of his or her status as such, whether or not the Company would have the power to indemnify such person against such liability under the provisions of this ARTICLE THIRTEENTH.
- (d) Amendment. This ARTICLE THIRTEENTH may be hereafter amended or repealed; however, no amendment or repeal shall reduce, terminate or otherwise adversely affect the right of a person entitled to obtain indemnification or an advance of expenses with respect to an action, suit or proceeding that pertains to or arises out of actions or omissions that occur prior to the later of (a) the effective date of such amendment or repeal; (b) the expiration date of such person's then current term of office with, or service for, the Company (provided such person has a stated term of office or service and completes such term); or (c) the effective date such person resigns his or her office or terminates his or her service (provided such person has a stated term of office or service but resigns prior to the expiration of such term).

Pursuant to RSMo Section 351.355 and the Restated Articles of Consolidation of the Company, the Company maintains directors' and officers' liability coverage.

#### Item 16. List of Exhibits.

Exhibit Number		Description of Exhibit
1.1	+	Form of Underwriting Agreement for general mortgage bonds of Kansas City Power & Light Company.
1.2	+	Form of Underwriting Agreement for notes of Kansas City Power & Light Company.
4.1	**	General Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated as of December 1, 1986, between Kansas City Power & Light Company and UMB Bank, N.A. (formerly United Missouri Bank of Kansas City, N.A.), Trustee (Exhibit 4-bb to Form 10-K for the annual period ended December 31, 1986, File No. 000-51873).
4.2	**	Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated as of February 15, 1992, to Indenture dated as of December 1, 1986 (Exhibit 4-y to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1991, File No. 000-51873).
4.3	**	Fifth Supplemental Indenture dated as of September 15, 1992, to Indenture dated as of December 1, 1986 (Exhibit 4-a to quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1992, File No. 000-51873).
4.4	**	Seventh Supplemental Indenture dated as of October 1, 1993, to Indenture dated as of December 1, 1986 (Exhibit 4-a to quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1993, File No. 000-51873).
4.5	**	Eighth Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 1, 1993, to Indenture dated as of December 1, 1986 (Exhibit 4 to Form S-3 Registration Statement, Registration No. 33-51799).
4.6	**	Eleventh Supplemental Indenture dated as of August 15, 2005, to the General Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated as of December 1, 1986, between Kansas City Power & Light Company and UMB Bank, N.A. (formerly United Missouri Bank of Kansas City, N.A.), Trustee (Exhibit 4.2 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2005, File No. 000-51873).
4.7	+	Form of supplemental indenture or other instrument establishing the issuance of one or more series of general mortgage bonds (including the form of general mortgage bond) of Kansas City Power & Light Company.
4.8	**	Indenture dated as of May 1, 2007 between Kansas City Power & Light Company and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee (Exhibit 4.1.b to Form 8-K dated June 4, 2007, File No. 000-51873).
4.9	**	Supplemental Indenture No. 1 dated as of June 4, 2007, to Indenture dated as of May 1, 2007 between Kansas City Power & Light Company and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A. (Exhibit 4.2 to Form 8-K dated June 4, 2007, File No. 000-51873).
4.10	+	Form of supplemental indenture or other instrument establishing the issuance of one or more series of notes (including the form of note) of Kansas City Power & Light Company.
5.1		Opinion of Mark English, General Counsel and Assistant Secretary of Great Plains Energy Incorporated, regarding the legality of the securities of Kansas City Power & Light Company.
12.1	**	Schedule of computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, 2004, 2003 and 2002 of Kansas City Power & Light Company (Exhibit 12.2 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the annual period ended December 31, 2006, File No. 000-

51873).

- 23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP with respect to Kansas City Power & Light Company.
- 23.2 Consent of Mark English, General Counsel and Assistant Secretary of Great Plains Energy Incorporated (included as part of Exhibit 5.1).
- 24.1 Powers of Attorney for Kansas City Power & Light Company.
- 25.1 ++ Form T-1 statement of eligibility of the trustee for the general mortgage bonds of Kansas City Power & Light Company.
- Form T-1 statement of eligibility of the trustee for the notes of Kansas City Power & Light Company.

- + To be filed by amendment or pursuant to a report to be filed pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, if applicable.
- ++ To be filed by amendment or pursuant to Trust Indenture Act Section 305(b)(2), if applicable.

#### Item 17. Undertakings.

- (a) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes:
- (1) to file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this registration statement:
  - (i) to include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933:
  - (ii) to reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement (or the most recent post-effective amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information set forth in the registration statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that which was registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume and price represent no more than a 20% change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the "Calculation of Registration Fee" table in the effective registration statement; and
  - (iii) to include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the registration statement or any material change to such information in the registration statement;

provided, however, that paragraphs (a)(1)(i), (a)(1)(ii) and (a)(1)(iii) do not apply if the information required to be included in a post-effective amendment by those paragraphs is contained in reports filed with or furnished to the Commission by the registrant pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that are incorporated by reference in the registration statement, or is contained in a form of prospectus filed pursuant to Rule 424(b) that is part of the registration statement;

(2) that, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof;

<sup>\*\*</sup> Incorporated by reference herein as indicated.

- (3) to remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain unsold at the termination of the offering;
- (4) that, for the purpose of determining liability under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser:
  - (i) each prospectus filed by the registrant pursuant to Rule 424(b)(3) shall be deemed to be part of the registration statement as of the date the filed prospectus was deemed part of and included in the registration statement; and
  - each prospectus required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424(b)(2), (b)(5), or (b)(7) as part of a registration statement in reliance on Rule 430B relating to an offering made pursuant to Rule 415(a)(1)(i), (vii), or (x) for the purpose of providing the information required by section 10(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 shall be deemed to be part of and included in the registration statement as of the earlier of the date such form of prospectus is first used after effectiveness or the date of the first contract of sale of securities in the offering described in the prospectus. As provided in Rule 430B, for liability purposes of the issuer and any person that is at that date an underwriter, such date shall be deemed to be a new effective date of the registration statement relating to the securities in the registration statement to which that prospectus relates. and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof. Provided, however, that no statement made in a registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement or made in a document incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference into the registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement will, as to a purchaser with a time of contract of sale prior to such effective date, supersede or modify any statement that was made in the registration statement or prospectus that was part of the registration statement or made in any such document immediately prior to such effective date;
- (5) that, for the purpose of determining liability of the registrant under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser in the initial distribution of the securities:

The undersigned registrant undertakes that in a primary offering of securities of the undersigned registrant pursuant to this registration statement, regardless of the underwriting method used to sell the securities to the purchaser, if the securities are offered or sold to such purchaser by means of any of the following communications, the undersigned registrant will be a seller to the purchaser and will be considered to offer or sell such securities to such purchaser:

- (i) any preliminary prospectus or prospectus of the undersigned registrant relating to the offering required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424;
- (ii) any free writing prospectus relating to the offering prepared by or on behalf of the undersigned registrant or used or referred to by the undersigned registrant;
- (iii) the portion of any other free writing prospectus relating to the offering containing material information about the undersigned registrant or its securities provided by or on behalf of the undersigned registrant; and
- (iv) any other communication that is an offer in the offering made by the undersigned registrant to the purchaser.
- (b) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes that, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each filing of registrant's annual report pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan's annual report pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) that is incorporated by reference in this registration statement shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial *bona fide* offering thereof.
- (c) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of the registrant pursuant to the foregoing

provisions or otherwise, the registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.

(d) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes to file an application for the purpose of determining the eligibility of the trustee for the general mortgage bonds to act under subsection (a) of section 310 of the Trust Indenture Act ("Act") in accordance with the rules and regulations prescribed by the Commission under section 305(b)(2) of the Act.

#### **SIGNATURES**

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this registration statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized in the city of Kansas City, State of Missouri, on this 18th day of December, 2007.

#### **GREAT PLAINS ENERGY INCORPORATED**

By: /s/ William H. Downey Name: William H. Downey

Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this Registration Statement or amendment has been signed below by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

<u>Signature</u>	<u>Title</u>	<u>Date</u>
/s/ William H. Downey	President and Chief Executive Officer and Director	) )
William H. Downey	(Principal Executive Officer)	)
/s/ Terry Bassham Terry Bassham	Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)	
Terry Dassilain	(Fillidipal Fillancial Officer)	<i>)</i> )
/s/ Lori A. Wright	Controller	)
Lori A. Wright	(Principal Accounting Officer)	) }
David L. Bodde*	Director	) December 18, 2007
/s/ Michael J. Chesser	Chairman of the Board	) )
Michael J. Chesser		) \
Mark A. Ernst*	Director	<u>,</u>
Randall C. Ferguson, Jr.*	Director	<u>'</u>
Luis A. Jimenez*	Director	) )
James A. Mitchell*	Director	)
William C. Nelson*	Director	)
Linda H. Talbott*	Director	) )

\*By:

/s/ Michael J. Chesser Michael J. Chesser Attorney-in-fact\*

#### **INDEX TO EXHIBITS**

Exhibit Number		Description of Exhibit
1.1	+	Form of Underwriting Agreement for general mortgage bonds of Kansas City Power & Light Company.
1.2	+	Form of Underwriting Agreement for notes of Kansas City Power & Light Company.
4.1	**	General Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated as of December 1, 1986, between Kansas City Power & Light Company and UMB Bank, N.A. (formerly United Missouri Bank of Kansas City, N.A.), Trustee (Exhibit 4-bb to Form 10-K for the annual period ended December 31, 1986, File No. 000-51873).
4.2	**	Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated as of February 15, 1992, to Indenture dated as of December 1, 1986 (Exhibit 4-y to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1991, File No. 000-51873).
4.3	**	Fifth Supplemental Indenture dated as of September 15, 1992, to Indenture dated as of December 1, 1986 (Exhibit 4-a to quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1992, File No. 000-51873).
4.4	**	Seventh Supplemental Indenture dated as of October 1, 1993, to Indenture dated as of December 1, 1986 (Exhibit 4-a to quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1993, File No. 000-51873).
4.5	**	Eighth Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 1, 1993, to Indenture dated as of December 1, 1986 (Exhibit 4 to Form S-3 Registration Statement, Registration No. 33-51799).
4.6	**	Eleventh Supplemental Indenture dated as of August 15, 2005, to the General Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated as of December 1, 1986, between Kansas City Power & Light Company and UMB Bank, n.a. (formerly United Missouri Bank of Kansas City, N.A.), Trustee (Exhibit 4.2 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2005, File No. 000-51873).
4.7	+	Form of supplemental indenture or other instrument establishing the issuance of one or more series of general mortgage bonds (including the form of general mortgage bond) of Kansas City Power & Light Company.
4.8	**	Indenture dated as of May 1, 2007 between Kansas City Power & Light Company and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee (Exhibit 4.1.b to Form 8-K dated June 4, 2007, File No. 000-51873).
4.9	**	Supplemental Indenture No. 1 dated as of June 4, 2007, to Indenture dated as of May 1, 2007 between Kansas City Power & Light Company and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A. (Exhibit 4.2 to Form 8-K dated June 4, 2007, File No. 000-51873).
4.10	+	Form of supplemental indenture or other instrument establishing the issuance of one or more series of notes (including the form of note) of Kansas City Power & Light Company.
5.1		Opinion of Mark English, General Counsel and Assistant Secretary of Great Plains Energy Incorporated, regarding the legality of the securities of Kansas City Power & Light Company.
12.1	**	Schedule of computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, 2004, 2003 and 2002 of Kansas City Power & Light Company (Exhibit 12.2 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the annual period ended December 31, 2006, File No. 000-

		51873).
23.1		Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP with respect to Kansas City Power & Light Company.
23.2		Consent of Mark English, General Counsel and Assistant Secretary of Great Plains Energy Incorporated (included as part of Exhibit 5.1).
24.1		Powers of Attorney for Kansas City Power & Light Company.
25.1	++	Form T-1 statement of eligibility of the trustee for the general mortgage bonds of Kansas City Power & Light Company.
25.2		Form T-1 statement of eligibility of the trustee for the notes of Kansas City Power & Light Company.

<sup>\*\*</sup> Incorporated by reference herein as indicated.

<sup>+</sup> To be filed by amendment or pursuant to a report to be filed pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, if applicable.

<sup>++</sup> To be filed by amendment or pursuant to Trust Indenture Act Section 305(b)(2), if applicable.

#### **EXHIBIT 2**

#### Certified copy of resolutions of the Applicant's Board of Directors

Certified copy of resolutions of the Applicant's Board of Directors authorizing, among other things, the Applicant to submit a registration statement to the SEC concerning the issuance of the debt securities. Applicant will submit as a late-filed exhibit subsequent Board of Director resolutions authorizing the issuance of specific debt securities.

### KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

I, Mark G. English, Assistant Secretary of Kansas City Power & Light Company (the "Company"), do hereby certify that attached hereto is a true and correct copy of excerpts from the minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors of said Company duly convened and held on May 1, 2007, at which meeting a quorum for the transaction of business was present and acting throughout; that set forth in said excerpts are true and correct copies of certain resolutions duly adopted at said meeting, which resolutions have not been amended nor rescinded and are now in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Company as of this 26th day of November, 2007.

Assistant Secretary

Kansas City Power & Light Company

(CORPORÁTE SEAL)

#### EXCERPT FROM MINUTES OF MEETING OF KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY BOARD OF DIRECTORS HELD MAY 1, 2007

RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of Kansas City Power & Light Company (the "Company") does hereby (i) authorize the preparation, execution, and filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"), a Registration Statement on Form S-3 ("Registration Statement") with respect to the proposed issuance and sale by the Company from time to time of one or more new series of the Company's investment-grade secured debt securities, senior unsecured debt securities ("Senior Debt Securities"), subordinated debt securities, and other similar debt securities (collectively, including the Senior Debt Securities, the "Securities"); and (ii) authorize the filing of any further documents or amendments to the Registration Statement as may be deemed necessary or appropriate (such further documents and amendments to include, but not be limited to, free writing prospectuses, prospectuses, prospectus supplements and amendments thereto).

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the General Counsel of Great Plains Energy Incorporated be, and hereby is, appointed and designated as the Company's agent for service and the person duly authorized to receive notices and communications from the SEC with respect to the Registration Statement, with the powers conferred upon such agent by the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and regulations of the SEC thereunder.

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the proper officers of the Company be, and each of them hereby is, authorized, in the name and on behalf of the Company, to determine the states or other jurisdictions in which it is required or advisable that action be taken to qualify or register for sale all or any part of the Securities covered by the Registration Statement; and to perform any and all such acts as such officers, or any of them, may deem necessary or advisable in order to comply with the applicable laws of any such state or other jurisdiction, and, in connection therewith, to execute and file all requisite papers and documents (including, but not limited to, applications, reports, surety bonds, irrevocable consents and appointments of attorneys or agents for service of process); and the execution of any such paper or document or the performance of any such action by any such officer in connection with the foregoing matters shall conclusively establish such officer's authority from the Company therefore and the approval and ratification by the Company of the papers and documents so executed and the action so performed.

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors hereby adopts the form of any and all resolutions required by any state or other jurisdiction in connection with any such applications, reports, surety bonds, irrevocable consents, appointments of attorneys for service of process and other papers and instruments referred to in the immediately preceding resolution if (i) in the opinion of the officer of the Company so acting, the adoption of such resolution is necessary or advisable and (ii) the Secretary of the Company evidences such adoption by filing with the minutes of this meeting a copy of

such resolution, which shall thereupon be deemed to be adopted by the Board of Directors and incorporated in these minutes as part of this resolution with the same force and effect as if presented to this meeting; and the proper officers of the Company be, and each of them hereby is, authorized to take such additional actions as such officer may deem necessary or appropriate in connection with the offering and sale of Securities under the applicable laws of any state or other jurisdiction.

FURTHER RESOLVED, that in order to fully carry out the intent and effectuate the purposes of the foregoing resolutions, the officers of the Company be, and each of them hereby is, authorized and directed, in the name and on behalf of the Company, to take all such actions, to execute and deliver all such further agreements, instruments and documents, to make all such filings with governmental or regulatory authorities, to pay all such fees and expenses and to do any and all other acts and things whatsoever, in each case which shall in such officer's judgment be deemed necessary, proper and advisable, such determination to be conclusively evidenced by such officer's execution and delivery thereof or taking of action in respect thereto.

FURTHER RESOLVED, that any and all actions heretofore or hereafter taken by each officer of the Company in accordance with the preceding resolutions is hereby approved, ratified and confirmed as the act and deed of the Company.

#### **EXHIBIT 3**

#### Pro forma financial statements of the Applicant

Applicant's revised *pro forma* financial statements as of September 30, 2007, giving effect to the transactions and accounting adjustments herein described are attached hereto.

#### KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Balance Sheet As of September 30, 2007

	<b>A</b> -41	Remarketing / Maturity		N	ew Debt		Use of Proceeds	_	. <b></b> .
	Actual	/ IVIai	urity				roceeas	Pi	ro Forma
ASSETS				()	housands)				
Current Assets									
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 653	\$	_	\$	893,250	\$	(893,250)	\$	653
Restricted cash	146,500	Ψ		Ψ	093,230	Ψ	(093,230)	Ψ	146,500
Receivables, net	177,534								177,534
Fuel inventories, at average cost	35,397								35,397
Materials and supplies, at average cost	63,347								63,347
Deferred refueling outage costs	8,147								8,147
Deferred income taxes	5,950								5,950
Prepaid expenses	8,342								8,342
Derivative instruments	663								663
Total	446,533				893,250		(893,250)		446,533
Nonutility Property and Investments	440,000				000,200		(000,200)		770,000
Nuclear decommissioning trust fund	110,668								110,668
Other	6,464								•
Total	117,132								6,464
Utility Plant, at Original Cost	117,132		<del></del>				<del>-</del>		117,132
_	F 110 015								F 446 675
Electric	5,419,610								5,419,610
Less-accumulated depreciation	2,554,815					_			2,554,815
Net utility plant in service	2,864,795		-		-		-		2,864,795
Construction work in progress	388,010						893,250		1,281,260
Nuclear fuel, net of amortization	64,380								64,380
Total	3,317,185		-		-		893,250		4,210,435
Deferred Charges									
Regulatory assets	421,718								421,718
Other	13,167				6,244				19,411
Total Total	434,885 \$ 4,315,735	\$	<u> </u>	s	6,244 899,494	\$	-		441,129 5,215,229
LIABILITIES AND CAPITALIZATION  Current Liabilities  Notes payable	\$ 50,000	\$	_	\$	_	\$	-	\$	50,000
Notes payable to Great Plains Energy	600					•		•	600
Commercial paper	208,647								208,647
EIRR bonds classified as current	146,500								146,500
Accounts payable	177,975								177,975
Accrued taxes	60,441		-		(23,032)				37,409
Accrued interest	19,066		-		60,750				79,816
Accrued compensation and benefits	21,974				,				21,974
Pension and post-retirement liability	841								841
Derivative instruments	52								52
Other	8,844								8,844
Total	694,940		_		37,718				732,658
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·								•
Deferred income taxes	657,522								657,522
Deferred investment tax credits	27,395								27,395
Asset retirement obligation	94,147								94,147
Pension and post-retirement liability	173,878								173,878
Regulatory liabilities	119,854								119,854
Derivative instruments	24								24
Other	54,304								54,304
Total	1,127,124		_		_		-		1,127,124
Capitalization	.,,	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					•		, _ , , . <del>_</del> ,
Common shareholder's equity  Common stock - 1,000 shares authorized without p	oar value								
1 share issued, stated value	1,115,656								1,115,656
Retained earnings	365,697		-		(38,224)				327,473
Accumulated other comprehensive income	8,960								8,960
Total	1,490,313		-		(38,224)		-		1,452,089
Long-term debt (excluding current maturities)	1,003,358		-		900,000			_	1,903,358
Total	2,493,671				861,776				3,355,447
	\$ 4,315,735	\$		\$	899,494	\$			5,215,229

## KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Statement of Income Year to Date September 30, 2007

	Actual		Adj	ustments	Pro Forma			
			(th	nousands)				
Operating Revenues								
Electric revenues	\$	990,844	\$	_	\$	990,844		
Operating Expenses					•			
Fuel		186,240				186,240		
Purchased power		80,360				80,360		
Operating expenses		223,371				223,371		
Maintenance		72,327				72,327		
Depreciation and amortization		130,943				130,943		
General taxes		87,265				87,265		
Loss on property		11				11		
Other		156				156		
Total	<u></u>	780,673		_		780,673		
Operating income		210,171		-		210,171		
Non-operating income		5,985				5,985		
Non-operating expenses		(3,371)				(3,371)		
Interest charges		(52,032)		(61,256)		(113,288)		
Income before income taxes		160,753		(61,256)		99,497		
Income taxes		(45,680)		23,032		(22,648)		
Net income	\$	115,073	\$	(38,224)	\$	76,849		

## KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow Year to Date September 30, 2007

		_	Adjustments							
	Actual		Remarketin		New Del		Use of			
			Actual		Maturity		Issuance		Proceeds	
Cash Flows from Operating Activities					(the	ousands)				
Net income	\$	115,073	\$	-	\$	(38,224)	\$	-	\$	76,849
Adjustments to reconcile income to net cash from										
operating actvities:										
Depreciation and amortization		130,943								130,943
Amortization of:										
Nuclear fuel		12,610								12,610
Other		3,939								3,939
Deferred income taxes, net		16,858								16,858
Investment tax credit amortization		(1,063)								(1,063)
Loss on property		11								11
Other operating activities		(14,631)				38,224				23,593
Net cash from operating activities	-	263,740						-		263,740
Cash Flows from Investing Activities										
Utility capital expenditures		(359,657)		-			(	893,250)	(1	,252,907)
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction		(10,575)								(10,575)
Purchases of nonutility property		(33)								(33)
Proceeds from sale of assets		73								73
Change in restricted cash		(146,500)								(146,500)
Purchases of nuclear decommissioning trust investments		(47,149)								(47,149)
Proceeds from nuclear decommissioning trust investments		44,387								44,387
Other investing activities		(4,728)								(4,728)
Net cash from investing activities		(524,182)		-		-	(	893,250)	(1	,417,432)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities										
Issuance of long-term debt		396,080				900,000			1	,296,080
Repayment of long-term debt		(225,500)		-						(225,500)
Net change in short-term borrowings		102,297								102,297
Dividends paid to Great Plains Energy		(104,000)								(104,000)
Equity contribution from Great Plains Energy		94,000								94,000
Issuance costs		(3,570)				(6,750)				(10,320)
Net cash from financing activities		259,307		-		893,250			1	,152,557
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents		(1,135)		-						(1,135)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year		1,788								1,788
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year	-\$	653	\$	_	\$		\$	_	\$	653

#### Consolidated Kansas City Power & Light Company MPSC L-T Debt Authorization Application December 2007 Pro forma

(\$ in 000's)

Assumptions	
Authorization for debt issuance:	\$ 1,400,000
Amount used as of 9/30/2007	500,000
Remaining debt to be issued in future:	\$ 900,000
2) Use of Proceeds: Refinance existing debt: 0.00% Senior Notes (due 20xx)	\$ _
New Capital Expenditure Funding	\$ 900,000
3) Cost of new debt issuance	0.75%
4) New Debt Interest Rate	9.00%
5) New Debt Term (years)	10
6) Tax rate	37.6%

#### Consolidated Kansas City Power & Light Company Pro Forma Adjustments As of September 30, 2007

(\$ in 000's)

Cash 893,250

Unamortized debt expense 6,750

Long term debt 900,000

To adjust for new long term debt

Senior Notes (0.000%)

Cash

Redeem existing long term debt with proceeds of new long term debt and cash

Capital Expenditures (CWIP)

893,250

Cash

893,250

Use long term debt proceeds for capital expenditures

Other Interest & Amortization expense

506

Unamortized debt expense

506

To adjust for 9 mts of amortization expense related to \$6,750 of debt issue costs (\$6,750 debt expense/10yrs\*9/12)

Interest expense

60,750

Accrued Interest

60,750

To adjust for 9 mts of interest expense on new debt (\$900,000\*9%\*9/12)

Accrued Interest SN 0.0%

Interest expense

To adjust for interest expense recorded in 200x for debt being redeemed (Senior Notes \$0M \*0.00% \*x mts)

Other receivables

No additional cash, rolled into CWIP

Non-operating income

To adjust for x year of interest income on short term invest for cash proceeds

**Accrued Taxes** 

22,842

Income tax expense

22,842

To adjust for less income tax due to more interest expense (\$60,750 \* 37.6%)

**Accrued Taxes** 

190

Income tax expense

190

To adjust for less income tax due to more amortization expense (\$506 \* 37.6%)

Income tax expense

Accrued Taxes

To adjust for more income tax due to less interest expense on debt redeemed (\$0 \* 37.6%)

check 1,877,538 1,877,538

Total Cash adjustments

\$

# EXHIBITS 4 AND 5 THESE DOCUMENTS CONTAIN HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION NOT AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC